# **Specific Procurement Notice**

Procurement of medical emergency response station equipment to support post-crash care interventions in Shimla & Nurpur Police Districts and Emergency Bags for first responders for rescue and Emergency response in 7 districts

(One-Envelope Bidding Process)

**Country:** India

Name of Project: Himachal Pradesh State Roads Transformation Project (HPSRTP) Contract Title: Procurement of medical emergency response station equipment to support post-crash care interventions in Shimla & Nurpur Police Districts and Emergency Bags for first responders for rescue and Emergency response in 7 districts.

Loan No./Credit No./ Grant No.: 9066-IN

RFB Reference No.: IN-HPRIDC -385383-GO-RFB

- 1. The Government of Himachal Pradesh through Government of India has received financing from the World Bank toward the cost of the Himachal Pradesh State Roads Transformation Project (HPSRTP), and intends to apply part of the proceeds toward payments under the contract for Procurement of medical emergency response station equipment to support post-crash care interventions in Shimla & Nurpur Police Districts and Emergency Bags for first responders for rescue and Emergency response in 7 districts. "For this contract, the Borrower shall process the payments using the Direct Payment disbursement method, as defined in the World Bank's Disbursement Guidelines for Investment Project Financing.
- 2. The Himachal Pradesh Road and Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (HPRIDCL), Government of Himachal Pradesh now invites sealed Bids from eligible Bidders for supply of 281 Medical Emergency Bag and 25 Station Equipment for Emergency Response Operations at O/o Additional Superintendent of Police, New Police Complex, Khalini, Shimla- 171002 before delivery date within 60 days from the date of signing of Contract.

2 Bidding Document

3. Bidding will be conducted through national competitive procurement using a Request for Bids (RFB) as specified in the World Bank's "Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers" *July 2016, Revised November 2017 and August 2018* ("Procurement Regulations"), and is open to all eligible Bidders as defined in the Procurement Regulations.

- 4. Interested eligible Bidders may obtain further information from The Director (Projects), State Roads Transformation Project, HPRIDCL, and inspect the bidding document during office hours from 1000 to 1700 hours (IST) at the address given below.
- 5. The bidding document in English may be purchased by interested Bidders upon the submission of a written application to the address below and upon payment of a nonrefundable fee as indicated in the table below, in the form of Demand Draft (DD) on any Scheduled/Nationalized bank "payable at Shimla" in favour of "The Director (Projects), HPRIDCL". Bidding Documents requested by mail will be promptly dispatched by registered/ speed post/ courier on payment of additional charges of INR 1,000.00 (exclusive of all taxes), and will be through a Demand draft drawn in the manner stated above, but under no circumstances will the Director (Projects) be held responsible for late delivery or loss of the documents so mailed.
- 6. Bids must be delivered to the address below on or before 11.01.2024 at 15:00 Hours (IST) Electronic Bidding will not be permitted. Late Bids will be rejected. Bids will be publicly opened in the presence of the Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend at the address below on 11.01.2024 at 15:30 Hours.
- 7. All Bids must be accompanied by a **Bid-Security**.
- 8. Attention is drawn to the Procurement Regulations requiring the Borrower to disclose information on the successful bidder's beneficial ownership, as part of the Contract Award Notice, using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form as included in the bidding document.
- 9. The address(es) referred to above is:

Director (Projects), State Roads Project, HPRIDCL, Nirman Bhawan, Nigam Vihar, Shimla-171002 Himachal Pradesh (India) Telephone number +91-117-2627602 Facsimile number: +91-117-2620663,

Email address: pdsrp-hp@nic.in

Bidding Document 3

### **TABLE**

Sl No	Name of Goods	Cost of Document	Period of Delivery of Goods
1	Emergency Bag	INR 5,000/-	Within <b>60 days</b> from the date
2	Station Equipment for	(exclusive of GST)	of signing of Contract.
	Emergency Response		

4 Bidding Document

# Request for Bids Goods

(One-Envelope Bidding Process)

Procurement of medical emergency response station equipment to support post-crash care interventions in Shimla & Nurpur Police Districts and Emergency Bags for first responders for rescue and Emergency response in 7 districts.

RFB No: IN-HPRIDC -385383-GO-RFB

**Project:** Himachal Pradesh State Roads Transformation Project (HPSRTP)

Purchaser: Himachal Pradesh Road and Infrastructure Development

Corporation Limited (HPRIDCL)

**Country:** India

**Issued on:** 23.12.2023

## **Table of Contents**

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	5
Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	35
Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	
Section IV - Bidding Forms	45
Section V - Eligible Countries	61
Section VI - Fraud and Corruption	
PART 2 – Supply Requirements	67
Section VII - Schedule of Requirements	69
PART 3 - Contract	89
Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract	91
Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract	
Section X - Contract Forms	

# **PART 1 – Bidding Procedures**

## **Section I -Instructions to Bidders**

### **Contents**

<b>A.</b> (	GeneralGeneral	7
1.	Scope of Bid	7
2.	Source of Funds	
3.	Fraud and Corruption	8
4.	Eligible Bidders	
5.	Eligible Goods and Related Services	
В. С	ontents of Request for Bids Document	11
6.	Sections of Bidding Document	11
7.	Clarification of Bidding Document	
8.	Amendment of Bidding Document	
C. P	reparation of Bids	13
9.	Cost of Bidding	13
10.	Language of Bid	13
11.	Documents Comprising the Bid	13
12.	Letter of Bid and Price Schedules	14
13.	Alternative Bids	14
14.	Bid Prices and Discounts	14
15.	Currencies of Bid and Payment	16
16.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Conformity of the Goods and Rel	
	Services	
17.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder	17
18.	Period of Validity of Bids	
19.	Bid Security	
20.	Format and Signing of Bid	
D. Sı	ubmission and Opening of Bids	21
21.	Sealing and Marking of Bids	21
22.	Deadline for Submission of Bids	
23.	Late Bids	22
24.	Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids	
25.	Bid Opening	
E. E	valuation and Comparison of Bids	24
26.	Confidentiality	
27.	Clarification of Bids	
28.	Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions	
29.	Determination of Responsiveness	

30.	Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions	26
31.	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	
32.	Conversion to Single Currency	27
33.	Margin of Preference	
34.	Evaluation of Bids	
35.	Comparison of Bids	28
36.	Abnormally Low Bids	29
37.	Qualification of the Bidder	
38.	Purchaser's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	
39.	Standstill Period	
40.	Notification of Intention to Award	30
F. A	ward of Contract	31
41.	Award Criteria	31
42.	Purchaser's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award	
43.	Notification of Award	
44.	Debriefing by the Purchaser	32
45.	Signing of Contract	
46.	Performance Security	
47.	Procurement Related Complaint	

### **Section I. Instructions to Bidders**

#### A. General

### 1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 In connection with the Specific Procurement Notice, Request for Bids (RFB), specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Purchaser, as specified in the BDS, issues this bidding document for the supply of Goods and, if applicable, any Related Services incidental thereto, as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this RFB are specified in the BDS.
- 1.2 Throughout this bidding document:
  - (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, including if **specified** in the BDS, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Purchaser) with proof of receipt;
  - (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
  - (c) "Day" means calendar day, unless otherwise specified as "Business Day". A Business Day is any day that is an official working day of the Borrower. It excludes the Borrower's official public holidays.

#### 2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in the BDS, toward the project named in the BDS. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which this bidding document is issued.
- 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the Loan account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import is

prohibited by decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing).

# 3. Fraud and Corruption

- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Section VI.
- 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause their agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any initial selection process, prequalification process, bid submission, proposal submission, and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

### 4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned enterprise or institution subject to ITB 4.6, or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the Bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.
- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this Bidding process, if the Bidder:
  - (a) directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
  - (b) receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
  - (c) has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
  - (d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or

- through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this Bidding process; or
- (e) or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the works that are the subject of the Bid; or
- (f) or any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Purchaser or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
- (g) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or
- (h) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding document or specifications of the Contract, and/or the Bid evaluation process of such Contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such Contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the Bidding process and execution of the Contract.
- 4.3 A firm that is a Bidder (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more than one Bid, except for permitted alternative Bids. This includes participation as a subcontractor. Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all Bids in which the firm is involved. A firm that is not a Bidder or a JV member, may participate as a subcontractor in more than one Bid.
- 4.4 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.8. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as

- the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or subconsultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.5 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank, pursuant to the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines, in accordance with its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework as described in Section VI paragraph 2.2 d., shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, initially selected for, bid for, propose for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address specified in the BDS.
- 4.6 Bidders that are state-owned enterprises or institutions in the Purchaser's Country may be eligible to compete and be awarded a Contract(s) only if they can establish, in a manner acceptable to the Bank, that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous (ii) operate under commercial law, and (iii) are not under supervision of the Purchaser.
- 4.7 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from Bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration.
- 4.8 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.9 A Bidder shall provide such documentary evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.
- 4.10 A firm that is under a sanction of debarment by the Borrower from being awarded a contract is eligible to participate in this procurement, unless the Bank, at the Borrower's request, is satisfied that the debarment:

- (a) relates to fraud or corruption; and
- (b) followed a judicial or administrative proceeding that afforded the firm adequate due process.
- 5. Eligible Goods and Related Services
- 5.1 All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries.
- 5.2 For purposes of this ITB, the term "goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "related services" includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "origin" means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

### **B.** Contents of Request for Bids Document

# 6. Sections of Bidding Document

6.1 The bidding document consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.

#### **PART 1 Bidding Procedures**

- Section I Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV Bidding Forms
- Section V Eligible Countries
- Section VI Fraud and Corruption

#### **PART 2 Supply Requirements**

• Section VII - Schedule of Requirements

#### **PART 3 Contract**

 Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract (GCC)

- Section IX Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Specific Procurement Notice, Request for Bids (RFB), issued by the Purchaser is not part of this bidding document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the bidding document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding document and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the bidding document.

# 7. Clarification of Bidding Document

A Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding 7.1 document shall contact the Purchaser in writing at the Purchaser's address specified in the BDS. The Purchaser will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of Bids within a period specified in the BDS. The Purchaser shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the bidding document in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so specified in the BDS, the Purchaser shall also promptly publish its response at the web page identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the bidding document, the Purchaser shall amend the bidding document following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2.

# 8. Amendment of Bidding Document

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the Purchaser may amend the bidding document by issuing addenda.
- 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the bidding document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the bidding document from the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Purchaser shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Purchaser's web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.

8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their Bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2.

### C. Preparation of Bids

- 9. Cost of Bidding
- 9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Bidding process.
- 10. Language of Bid
- 10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified **in the BDS**. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language specified **in the BDS**, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

# 11. Documents Comprising the Bid

- 11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:
  - (a) Letter of Bid prepared in accordance with ITB 12;
  - (b) **Price Schedules**: completed in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14;
  - (c) **Bid Security** or **Bid-Securing Declaration**, in accordance with ITB 19.1;
  - (d) **Alternative Bid**: if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13;
  - (e) **Authorization**: written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.3;
  - (f) **Qualifications**: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted;
  - (g) **Bidder's Eligibility**: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid;
  - (h) Eligibility of Goods and Related Services: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16, establishing the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder;

- (i) **Conformity**: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16 and 30, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the bidding document; and
- (j) any other document required in the BDS.
- 11.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, Bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the Bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
- 11.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.

# 12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules

12.1. The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.3. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

#### 13. Alternative Bids

13.1. Unless otherwise specified **in the BDS**, alternative Bids shall not be considered.

# 14. Bid Prices and Discounts

- 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
- 14.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.
- 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12.1 shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with ITB 12.1.
- 14.5 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified **in the BDS.**A Bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 29. However, if in accordance with **the BDS**, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a Bid

- submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.
- 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, Bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise specified **in the BDS**, prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their Bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the Bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.
- 14.7 The terms EXW, CIP, and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by the International Chamber of Commerce, as specified in the BDS.
- 14.8 Prices shall be quoted as specified in each Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The disaggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of Bids by the Purchaser. This shall not in any way limit the Purchaser's right to contract on any of the terms offered. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country, in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:
  - (a) For Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country:
    - the price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex-works, ex-factory, ex warehouse, ex showroom, or offthe-shelf, as applicable), including all customs duties and sales and other taxes already paid or payable on the components and raw material used in the manufacture or assembly of the Goods;
    - (ii) any Purchaser's Country sales tax and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the Contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
    - (iii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods

to their final destination (Project Site) specified in the BDS.

- (b) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, to be imported:
  - (i) the price of the Goods, quoted CIP named place of destination, in the Purchaser's Country, as specified **in the BDS**;
  - (ii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods from the named place of destination to their final destination (Project Site) specified in the BDS;
- (c) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported:
  - (i) the price of the Goods, including the original import value of the Goods; plus any mark-up (or rebate); plus any other related local cost, and custom duties and other import taxes already paid or to be paid on the Goods already imported;
  - (ii) the custom duties and other import taxes already paid (need to be supported with documentary evidence) or to be paid on the Goods already imported;
  - (iii) the price of the Goods, obtained as the difference between (i) and (ii) above;
  - (iv) any Purchaser's Country sales and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the Contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
  - (v) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) specified in the BDS.
- (d) for Related Services, other than inland transportation and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination, whenever such Related Services are specified in the Schedule of Requirements, the price of each item comprising the Related Services (inclusive of any applicable taxes).
- **15.** Currencies of Bid 15.1 The currency(ies) of the Bid and the currency(ies) of and Payment payments shall be the same. The Bidder shall quote in the

- currency of the Purchaser's Country the portion of the Bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Purchaser's Country, unless otherwise specified in the BDS.
- 15.2 The Bidder may express the Bid price in any currency. If the Bidder wishes to be paid in a combination of amounts in different currencies, it may quote its price accordingly but shall use no more than three foreign currencies in addition to the currency of the Purchaser's Country.
- 16. Documents
  Establishing the
  Eligibility and
  Conformity of the
  Goods and
  Related Services
- 16.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the bidding document, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.3 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.4 The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.
- 16.5 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.

#### 17. Documents

17.1 To establish Bidder's eligibility in accordance with ITB 4,

### Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder

Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

- 17.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser's satisfaction:
  - (a) that, if required **in the BDS**, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer's Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser's Country;
  - (b) that, if required **in the BDS**, in case of a Bidder not doing business within the Purchaser's Country, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the Contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and
  - (c) that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

# 18. Period of Validity of Bids

- 18.1. Bids shall remain valid until the date **specified in the BDS** or any extended date if amended by the Purchaser in accordance with ITP 8. A Bid that is not valid until the date **specified in the BDS**, or any extended date if amended by the Purchaser in accordance with ITP 8, shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive.
- 18.2. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiry of the Bid validity, the Purchaser may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB 19, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
- 18.3. If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial Bid validity period, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
  - (a) in the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified

#### in the BDS:

- (b) in the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made:
- (c) in any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.

#### 19. Bid Security

- 19.1. The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a Bid Security, as specified in the **BDS**, in original form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency specified in the **BDS**.
- 19.2. A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 19.3. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
  - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or nonbank financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);
  - (b) an irrevocable letter of credit;
  - (c) a cashier's or certified check; or
  - (d) another security specified in the BDS,

from a reputable source, and an eligible country. If an unconditional guarantee is issued by a non-bank financial institution located outside the Purchaser's Country, the issuing non-bank financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country to make it enforceable unless the Purchaser has agreed in writing, prior to Bid submission, that a correspondent financial institution is not required. In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid Security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Purchaser prior to Bid submission. The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original date of expiry of the Bid validity, or beyond any extended date if requested under ITB 18.2.

- 19.4. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
- 19.5. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as

- promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the Contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 46.
- 19.6. The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security.
- 19.7. The Bid Security may be forfeited:
  - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid prior to the expiry date of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extended date provided by the Bidder; or
  - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
    - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB45; or
    - (ii) furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 46.
- 19.8. The Bid Security or Bid- Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, the Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
- 19.9. If a Bid Security is not required **in the BDS**, pursuant to ITB 19.1, and
  - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Bidder; or
  - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 46;

the Borrower may, if provided for **in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time as stated **in the BDS**.

# 20. Format and Signing of Bid

20.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." Alternative Bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be clearly marked "ALTERNATIVE." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number **specified in the BDS** and clearly mark them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the

- copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 Bidders shall mark as "CONFIDENTIAL" information in their Bids which is confidential to their business. This may include proprietary information, trade secrets, or commercial or financially sensitive information.
- 20.3 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified **in the BDS** and shall be attached to the Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.
- 20.4 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.
- 20.5 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.

### D. Submission and Opening of Bids

# 21. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1. The Bidder shall deliver the Bid in a single, sealed envelope (one-envelope Bidding process). Within the single envelope the Bidder shall place the following separate, sealed envelopes:
  - (a) in an envelope marked "ORIGINAL", all documents comprising the Bid, as described in ITB 11; and
  - (b) in an envelope marked "COPIES", all required copies of the Bid; and,
  - (c) if alternative Bids are permitted in accordance with ITB 13, and if relevant:
    - i. in an envelope marked "ORIGINAL -ALTERNATIVE", the alternative Bid: and
    - ii. in the envelope marked "COPIES ALTERNATIVE BID" all required copies of the alternative Bid.
- 21.2. The inner and outer envelopes, shall:

- (a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;
- (b) be addressed to the Purchaser in accordance with ITB22.1;
- (c) bear the specific identification of this Bidding process indicated in ITB 1.1; and
- (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid opening.
- 21.3 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Purchaser will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

# 22. Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 22.1. Bids must be received by the Purchaser at the address and no later than the date and time specified **in the BDS**. When so specified **in the BDS**, Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the electronic Bid submission procedures specified **in the BDS**.
- 22.2. The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by amending the bidding document in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

#### 23. Late Bids

23.1. The Purchaser shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any Bid received by the Purchaser after the deadline for submission of Bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.

### 24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids

- 24.1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 20.3, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
  - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and 21 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," or "MODIFICATION;" and
  - (b) received by the Purchaser prior to the deadline

prescribed for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22.

- 24.2. Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
- 24.3. No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

### 25. Bid Opening

- 25.1. Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and ITB 24.2, the Purchaser shall, at the Bid opening, publicly open and read out all Bids received by the deadline at the date, time and place specified **in the BDS** in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend. Any specific electronic Bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 22.1, shall be as specified **in the BDS**.
- 25.2. First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. If the withdrawal envelope does not contain a copy of the "power of attorney" confirming the signature as a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, the corresponding Bid will be opened. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid opening.
- 25.3. Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening.
- 25.4. Next, envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening.
- 25.5. Next, all remaining envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security, if required; and

- any other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate.
- 25.6. Only Bids, alternative Bids and discounts that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further in the evaluation. The Letter of Bid and the Price Schedules are to be initialed by representatives of the Purchaser attending Bid opening in the manner specified in the BDS.
- 25.7. The Purchaser shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.1).
- 25.8. The Purchaser shall prepare a record of the Bid opening that shall include, as a minimum:
  - (a) the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification;
  - (b) the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts;
  - (c) any alternative Bids;
  - (d) the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if one was required.
- 25.9. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

### E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

#### 26. Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the evaluation of Bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the Bidding process until the information on Intention to Award the Contract is transmitted to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.
- 26.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the Bidding process, it should do so in writing.

#### 27. Clarification of Bids

27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may,

at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid and that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with ITB 31.

- 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.
- 28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions
- 28.1 During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:
  - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the bidding document;
  - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the bidding document; and
  - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the bidding document.
- 29. Determination of Responsiveness
- 29.1 The Purchaser's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.
- 29.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the bidding document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
  - (a) if accepted, would:
    - (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; or
    - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding document, the Purchaser's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
  - (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bids.

- 29.3 The Purchaser shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16 and ITB 17, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Schedule of Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.
- 29.4 If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of bidding document, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

### 30. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions

- 30.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.
- 30.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 30.3 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component, by adding the average price of the item or component quoted by substantially responsive Bidders. If the price of the item or component cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Bids, the Purchaser shall use its best estimate.

# 31. Correction of Arithmetical Errors

- 31.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
  - (a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
  - (b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the

- addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 31.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- **32.** Conversion to Single Currency
- 32.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as specified in the BDS.
- **33. Margin of Preference** 33.1 Unless otherwise specified **in the BDS**, a margin of preference shall not apply.
- 34. Evaluation of Bids
- 34.1 The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this ITB and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted. By applying the criteria and methodologies, the Purchaser shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
  - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
  - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.
- 34.2 To evaluate a Bid, the Purchaser shall consider the following:
  - (a) evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as specified **in the BDS**; and the Bid Price as quoted in accordance with ITB 14:
  - (b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 31.1;
  - (c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4;
  - (d) converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (c) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;
  - (e) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 30.3; and

- (f) the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 34.4 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.5 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid will exclude and not take into account:
  - (a) in the case of Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder:
  - (b) in the case of Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported or to be imported, customs duties and other import taxes levied on the imported Good, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder;
  - (c) any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the Bid.
- 34.6 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of Bids, unless otherwise specified **in the BDS** from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in ITB 34.2(f).

#### 35. Comparison of Bids

35.1 The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated costs of all substantially responsive Bids established in accordance with ITB 34.2 to determine the Bid that has the lowest evaluated cost. The comparison shall be on the basis of CIP (place of final destination) prices for imported goods and EXW prices, plus cost of inland transportation and

insurance to place of destination, for goods manufactured within the Borrower's country, together with prices for any required installation, training, commissioning and other services. The evaluation of prices shall not take into account custom duties and other taxes levied on imported goods quoted CIP and sales and similar taxes levied in connection with the sale or delivery of goods.

## 36. Abnormally Low Bids

- 36.1 An Abnormally Low Bid is one where the Bid price, in combination with other constituent elements of the Bid, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the Bid price raises material concerns with the Purchaser as to the capability of the Bidder to perform the Contract for the offered Bid price.
- 36.2 In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Bid, the Purchaser shall seek written clarification from the Bidder, including a detailed price analyses of its Bid price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, delivery schedule, allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the bidding document.
- 36.3 After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Purchaser determines that the Bidder has failed to demonstrate its capability to perform the contract for the offered Bid price, the Purchaser shall reject the Bid.

# 37. Qualification of the Bidder

- 37.1 The Purchaser shall determine, to its satisfaction, whether the eligible Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated cost and substantially responsive Bid, meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 37.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors (other than specialized subcontractors if permitted in the bidding document), or any other firm(s) different from the Bidder.
- 37.3 Prior to Contract award, the Purchaser will verify that the successful Bidder (including each member of a JV) is not disqualified by the Bank due to noncompliance with contractual SEA/SH prevention and response obligations. The Purchaser will conduct the same verification for each subcontractor proposed by the successful Bidder. If any proposed subcontractor does not meet the requirement, the

Purchaser will require the Bidder to propose a replacement subcontractor.

- 37.4 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Purchaser shall proceed to the Bidder who offers a substantially responsive Bid with the next lowest evaluated cost to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- 38. Purchaser's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids
- 38.1 The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to annul the Bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract Award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.
- 39. Standstill Period
- 39.1 The Contract shall not be awarded earlier than the expiry of the Standstill Period. The Standstill Period shall be ten (10) Business Days unless extended in accordance with ITB 44. The Standstill Period commences the day after the date the Purchaser has transmitted to each Bidder the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract. Where only one Bid is submitted, or if this contract is in response to an emergency situation recognized by the Bank, the Standstill Period shall not apply.

# 40. Notification of Intention to Award

- 40.1 The Purchaser shall send to each Bidder the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract to the successful Bidder. The Notification of Intention to Award shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
  - (a) the name and address of the Bidder submitting the successful Bid;
  - (b) the Contract price of the successful Bid;
  - (c) the names of all Bidders who submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as readout, and as evaluated;
  - (d) a statement of the reason(s) the Bid (of the unsuccessful Bidder to whom the notification is addressed) was unsuccessful, unless the price information in c) above already reveals the reason;
  - (e) the expiry date of the Standstill Period;
  - (f) instructions on how to request a debriefing and/or submit a complaint during the standstill period.

#### F. Award of Contract

#### 41. Award Criteria

- 41.1 Subject to ITB 38, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder offering the Most Advantageous Bid. The Most Advantageous Bid is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
  - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
  - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.

### 42. Purchaser's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award

42.1 At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages specified in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the Bid and the bidding document.

## 43. Notification of Award

- 43.1 Prior to the date of expiry of the Bid validity and upon expiry of the Standstill Period, specified in ITB 39.1 or any extension thereof, and upon satisfactorily addressing any complaint that has been filed within the Standstill Period, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification of award (hereinafter and in the Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Purchaser will pay the Supplier in consideration of the execution of the Contract (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").
- 43.2 Within ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of the Letter of Acceptance, the Purchaser shall publish the Contract Award Notice which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
  - (a) name and address of the Purchaser;
  - (b) name and reference number of the contract being awarded, and the selection method used;
  - (c) names of all Bidders that submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as read out at Bid opening, and as evaluated:
  - (d) names of all Bidders whose Bids were rejected either as nonresponsive or as not meeting qualification criteria, or were not evaluated, with the reasons there

for;

- (e) the name of the successful Bidder, the final total contract price, the contract duration and a summary of its scope; and
- (f) successful Bidder's Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if specified in BDS ITB 45.1.
- 43.3 The Contract Award Notice shall be published on the Purchaser's website with free access if available, or in at least one newspaper of national circulation in the Purchaser's Country, or in the official gazette. The Purchaser shall also publish the contract award notice in UNDB online.
- 43.4 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the Letter of Acceptance shall constitute a binding Contract.

# 44. Debriefing by the Purchaser

- 44.1 On receipt of the Purchaser's Notification of Intention to Award referred to in ITB 40.1, an unsuccessful Bidder has three (3) Business Days to make a written request to the Purchaser for a debriefing. The Purchaser shall provide a debriefing to all unsuccessful Bidders whose request is received within this deadline.
- 44.2 Where a request for debriefing is received within the deadline, the Purchaser shall provide a debriefing within five (5) Business Days, unless the Purchaser decides, for justifiable reasons, to provide the debriefing outside this timeframe. In that case, the standstill period shall automatically be extended until five (5) Business Days after such debriefing is provided. If more than one debriefing is so delayed, the standstill period shall not end earlier than five (5) Business Days after the last debriefing takes place. The Purchaser shall promptly inform, by the quickest means available, all Bidders of the extended standstill period
- 44.3 Where a request for debriefing is received by the Purchaser later than the three (3)-Business Day deadline, the Purchaser should provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business Days from the date of publication of Public Notice of Award of contract. Requests for debriefing received outside the three (3)-day deadline shall not lead to extension of the standstill period.
- 44.4 Debriefings of unsuccessful Bidders may be done in writing or verbally. The Bidders shall bear their own costs

of attending such a debriefing meeting.

### **45. Signing of Contract**

- 45.1 The Purchaser shall send to the successful Bidder the Letter of Acceptance including the Contract Agreement, and, if specified in the BDS, a request to submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form providing additional information on its beneficial ownership. The Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if so requested, shall be submitted within eight (8) Business Days of receiving this request.
- 45.2 The successful Bidder shall sign, date and return to the Purchaser, the Contract Agreement within twenty-eight (28) days of its receipt.
- 45.3 Notwithstanding ITB 45.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such export restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its Bid, always provided however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that signing of the Contact Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract.

# **46. Performance Security**

- 46.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of Letter of Acceptance from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC 18, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Purchaser. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country, unless the Purchaser has agreed in writing that a correspondent financial institution is not required.
- 46.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-

mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the Bidder offering the next Most Advantageous Bid.

# **47.1 Complaint** 47.1

The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are as specified in the BDS.

# **Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)**

ITB Reference	A. General					
ITB 1.1	The reference number of the Request for Bids (RFB) is:					
	IN-HPRIDC -385383-GO-RFB					
	The Purchaser is: Himachal Pradesh Road and Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited (HPRIDCL)					
	The name of the RFB is: Procurement of medical emergency response station equipment to support post-crash care interventions in Shimla & Nurpur Police Districts and Emergency Bags for first responders for rescue and Emergency response in 7 districts					
	The number and identification of lots (contracts)comprising this RFB is: None					
ITB 1.2(a)	Electronic-procurement system is not applicable.					
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Government of Himachal Pradesh Loan or Financing Agreement amount: US\$82.0 Million The name of the Project is: Himachal Pradesh State Roads Transformation Project (HPSRTP)					
ITB 4.1	Joint Venture (JV) is permitted and the maximum number of members shall be: Two (2)					
ITB 4.5	A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank's external website: <a href="http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.">http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.</a>					
	B. Contents of Bidding Document					
ITB 7.1	For Clarification of Bid purposes only, the Purchaser's address is:					
	O/o Director (Projects), HPRIDCL, Nirman Bhawan, Nigam Vihar, Shimla – 171 002, Himachal Pradesh. Tel: 0177 – 2627602, 2620663 Fax: 0177 – 2620663 E-mail: pdsrp-hp@nic.in					
	Requests for clarification should be received by the Purchaser no later than: 02.01.2024					
	C. Preparation of Bids					

ITB 10.1	The language of the Bid is: <b>ENGLISH</b>						
	All correspondence exchange shall be in <b>English</b> language.						
	Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is <b>English</b> .						
ITB 11.1 (j)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its Bid:  i) Copy of <b>GST Registration</b> certificate						
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids <b>shall not</b> be considered.						
ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder <b>shall not</b> be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.						
ITB 14.6	Not Applicable						
ITB 14.7	The Incoterms edition is: 2020 Rules						
ITB 14.8	Place of destination:						
(b)(i)	O/o Additional Superintendent of Police, Under the Supervision of AIG, Traffic, Tourist & Railways (TTR), New Police Complex, Khalini, Shimla-171002, Himachal Pradesh						
ITB 14.8	Final Destination (Project Site):						
(a)(iii), (b)(ii) and (c)(v)	O/o Additional Superintendent of Police, Under the Supervision of AIG, Traffic, Tourist & Railways (TTR), New Police Complex, Khalini, Shimla-171002, Himachal Pradesh						
ITB 15.1	The currency of the Bid shall be: <b>Indian Rupees (INR)</b>						
ITB 16.4	Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): <b>Not Applicable</b> ( <i>The items are disposable medical supplies so there is no spare parts involved and also there is expiry date to the items</i> )						
ITB 17.2 (a)	Manufacturer's authorization is required as per the form enclosed in Section IV, Bidding Forms.						
ITB 17.2 (b)	After sales service is not required.						
ITB 18.1	The Bid shall be valid until <b>90 days</b>						
ITB 18.3 (a)	The Bid price shall be adjusted by the following factor(s): 3% per annum.						
ITB 19.1	A Bid Security in the form of Bank Guarantee for an amount of <b>INR 2,00,000.00 shall be</b> required.						

ITB 19.3 (d)	Other types of acceptable securities: <b>None</b>
ITB 19.9	Deleted.
ITB 20.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: Three (3)
ITB 20.3	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of <b>legally enforceable valid power of attorney</b> duly attested by a Notary.
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids
ITB 22.1	For <u>Bid submission purposes</u> only, the Purchaser's address is:  O/o Director (Projects), State Roads Project, HPRIDCL, Nirman Bhawan, Nigam Vihar, Shimla – 171 002 INDIA Tel: 0177 – 2627602, 2620663 Fax: 0177 – 2620663 E-mail: pdsrp-hp@nic.in  The deadline for Bid submission is: Date: 11.01.2024 Time: 15:00 Hours Indian Standard Time (IST) Bidders <i>shall not</i> have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.
ITB 25.1	The Bid opening shall take place at:  O/o Director (Projects), State Roads Project, HPRIDCL, Nirman Bhawan, Nigam Vihar, Shimla – 171 002 INDIA Tel: 0177 – 2627602, 2620663 Fax: 0177 – 2620663 E-mail: pdsrp-hp@nic.in  Date: 11.01.2024 Time: 15:00 Hours Indian Standard Time (IST)
ITB 25.6	Purchaser's representative is the Director (Projects), State Roads Project, HPRIDCL.

	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids
ITB 32.1	Not Applicable.
ITB 33.1	A margin of domestic preference <b>shall not</b> apply.
ITB 34.2(a)	Evaluation will be done for the total price of the bid.
ITB 34.6	The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:
	(a) Deviation in Delivery schedule: No
	(b) Deviation in payment schedule: No
	(c) The cost of major replacement component, mandatory spare parts, and service: No
	(d) The availability in the Purchaser's Country of spare parts and aftersales services for the equipment offered in the Bid: <b>Not Applicable</b>
	(e) Life cycle costs: the costs during the life of the goods or equipment: <b>No</b>
	(f) The performance and productivity of the equipment offered: <b>No</b>
	(g) Not Applicable
	F. Award of Contract
ITB 42	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: 25% The maximum percentage by which quantities may be decreased is: 25%
ITB 45. 1	The successful Bidder shall submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.
ITB 47.1	The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are detailed in the "Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers (Annex III)." If a Bidder wishes to make a Procurement-related Complaint, the Bidder should submit its complaint following these procedures, in writing (by the

quickest means available, that is either by email or fax), to:

For the attention:

**Title/position**: Director (Projects)

Purchaser: HPRIDCL

**Email address:** <u>pdsrp-hp@nic.in</u> **Fax number:** +91-117-2620663

In summary, a Procurement-related Complaint may challenge any of the following:

1. the terms of the Bidding Documents; and

2. the Purchaser's decision to award the contract.

# Section III -Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

## **Contents**

1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33)	42
2. Evaluation (ITB 34)	42
3. Qualification (ITB 37)	42

### 1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33)

The Margin of Preference shall not apply.

### **Most Advantageous Bid**

The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in Section 2 and 3 below to determine the Most Advantageous Bid. The Most Advantageous Bid is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:

- (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
- (b) the lowest evaluated cost.

### 2. Evaluation (ITB 34)

### 2.1. Evaluation Criteria (ITB 34.6)

The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid may take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14.8, one or more of the following factors as specified in ITB 34.2(f) and in BDS referring to ITB 34.6, using the following criteria and methodologies.

- (a) No deviation allowed in Delivery Schedule. (As per Incoterms specified in the BDS)
- (b) No deviation allowed in Payment Schedule.
- (c) Not Applicable
- (d) Not Applicable
- (e) Not Applicable
- (f) Not Applicable
- (g) Not Applicable

### 2.2. Multiple Contracts (ITB 34.4)

Not Applicable 2.3. Alternative Bids (ITB 13.1)

Alternative Bids are not permitted.

### 3. Qualification (ITB 37)

### 3.1 Qualification Criteria (ITB 37.1)

After determining the substantially responsive Bid which offers the lowest-evaluated cost in accordance with ITB 34, and, if applicable, the assessment of any Abnormally Low Bid (in accordance with ITB 36) the Purchaser shall carry out the post-qualification of the Bidder in accordance with ITB 37, using only the requirements specified. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

(a) **Financial Capability**: The Bidder shall submit audited financial statements or, if not required by the law of the Bidder's country, other financial statements acceptable to the Purchaser, for the last **Five** (5) years prior to bid submission deadline, demonstrating the current soundness of the Bidder's financial position. For a joint venture, this requirement shall be met by each member;

### (b) Specific Experience:

- i. Registered Manufacturer/ Supplier/ Vendor with valid registration and license under relevant statutes having 5 years' experience in the field of supplying medical and emergency response items in India can participate in the bidding.
- ii. Minimum 5 years of experience in supply of medical and emergency equipment to hospitals, NGO's or department of Paramedics in any states in India.
- iii. Should have an average annual turnover of INR 80 Lakhs or more in any of last three financial years and shall submit audited balance sheet for the same.
- iv. Preference is given to local bidders within the state of Himachal Pradesh or national bidders with representative office within the state of Himachal Pradesh.
- v. Added advantage for completion of similar procurement and supply of emergency response equipment or Emergency Bag/ First-Aid equipment to minimum one state agency in India.

In case of bidders who form a JV with vendor/ supplier for bidding shall confirm the qualifications combined as mentioned above.

- **Documentary Evidence**: The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that the goods it offers meet the following usage requirement: **Invoice claimed for** Emergency response Equipment and it's payment certificate.
- **Demonstration of equipment**: The bidder shall demonstrate samples of the items (with carry bag) listed in Emergency Bags and station equipment, ensuring compliance with the Technical Specifications and Standards mentioned in **3-technical specification.**
- (c) **Manufacturing experience and Technical Capacity**: For the items under the Contract that the bidder is a manufacturer, the Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that:
  - (i) it has manufactured goods of similar nature and complexity for at least **Five (5)** years, prior to the bid submission deadline; and
  - (ii) its annual production capacity of goods of similar nature and complexity for each of the last **Five** (5) years prior to the bid submission deadline, is at least **Ten** (10) times the quantities specified under the contract.

(d) Manufacturer's authorization: A Bidder who does not manufacture an item/s where a manufacturer authorization is required in accordance with BDS ITB 17.2 (a), the Bidder shall provide evidence of being duly authorized by a manufacturer (Manufacturer's Authorization Form, Section IV, Bidding Forms), meeting the criteria in (d)(i) and (ii) above, to supply the Goods;

At the time of Contract Award, the Bidder (including each subcontractor proposed by the Bidder) shall not be subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/SH obligations.

### **Table of Forms**

Letter of Bid	46
Bidder Information Form	49
Bidder's JV Members Information Form	50
Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment Performance Declaration	51
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to be Imported	53
Not Applicable	53
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported*	54
Not Applicable	54
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country	56
Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services	57
Not Applicable	57
Form of Bid Security	58
Manufacturer's Authorization	60

### Letter of Bid

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE DOCUMENT

The Bidder must prepare this Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and business address.

*Note:* All italicized text is to help Bidders in preparing this form.

**Date of this Bid submission**: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission]

**RFB No.:** [insert number of RFB process] **Request for Bid No.:** [insert identification]

**Alternative No.**:[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

- (a) **No reservations:** We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 8);
- (b) **Eligibility**: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) **Bid/Proposal-Securing Declaration**: We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration in the Purchaser's Country in accordance with ITB 4.7;
- (d) **Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH):** [select the appropriate option from (i) to (iii) below and delete the others. In case of JV members and/or subcontractors, indicate the status of disqualification by the Bank of each JV member and/or subcontractor].

We, including any of our subcontractors:

- (i) [have not been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/SH obligations.]
- (ii) [are subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.]
- (iii) [had been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and were removed from the disqualification list. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made in our favor.]

- (e) **Conformity:** We offer to supply in conformity with the bidding document and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods: [insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services];
- (f) **Bid Price**: The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

Total price is: [insert the total price of the Bid in words and figures in Indian Rupees (INR).]

- (g) **Discounts**: The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:
  - (i) The discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered.]
  - (ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];
- (h) **Bid Validity**: Our Bid shall be valid until [insert day, month and year in accordance with ITP 18.1], and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (i) **Performance Security**: Not applicable
- (j) **One Bid per Bidder**: We are not submitting any other Bid(s) as an individual Bidder, and we are not participating in any other Bid(s) as a Joint Venture member, or as a subcontractor, and meet the requirements of ITB 4.3, other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- (k) **Suspension and Debarment**: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Purchaser's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
- (1) **State-owned enterprise or institution**: [select the appropriate option and delete the other] [We are not a state-owned enterprise or institution] / [We are a state-owned enterprise or institution but meet the requirements of ITB 4.6];
- (m) Commissions, gratuities, fees: We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount	

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

- (n) **Binding Contract**: We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your Letter of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (o) **Purchaser Not Bound to Accept**: We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated cost Bid, the Most Advantageous Bid or any other Bid that you may receive; and
- (p) **Fraud and Corruption**: We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption.

**Name of the Bidder**: \*[insert complete name of the Bidder]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder: \*\*[insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]

**Title of the person signing the Bid**: [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

**Signature of the person named above**: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

**Date signed** [insert date of signing] **day of** [insert month], [insert year]

<sup>\*:</sup> In the case of the Bid submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder.

<sup>\*\*:</sup> Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Bid Schedules.

### **Bidder Information Form**

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission]

RFB No.: [insert number of RFB process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative] Page \_\_\_\_\_ of\_ \_\_\_ pages 1.Bidder's Name[insert Bidder's legal name] 2.In case of JV, legal name of each member: [insert legal name of each member in JV] 3. Bidder's actual or intended country of registration: [insert actual or intended country of registration] 4.Bidder's year of registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration] 5. Bidder's Address in country of registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration] 6.Bidder's Authorized Representative Information Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name] Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address] Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers] Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address] Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents] Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4. In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1. In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.6 documents establishing: • Legal and financial autonomy • Operation under commercial law Establishing that the Bidder is not under the supervision of the Purchaser 8. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial

ownership.[If required under BDS ITB 45.1, the successful Bidder shall provide additional information on beneficial ownership, using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.]

### **Bidder's JV Members Information Form**

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture].

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission]

RFB No.: [insert number of Bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

	Page	of	pages
1. Bidder's Name: [insert Bidder's legal name]			
2. Bidder's JV Member's name: [insert JV's Member]	er legal name	1	
3. Bidder's JV Member's country of registration registration]	on: [insert JV	''s Member (	country of
4. Bidder's JV Member's year of registration: [inse	rt JV's Membe	er year of regi	stration]
5. Bidder's JV Member's legal address in country legal address in country of registration]	of registration	on: [insert JV	's Member
6. Bidder's JV Member's authorized representative	information		
Name: [insert name of JV's Member authorized repr	esentative]		
Address: [insert address of JV's Member authorized	representative	e]	
Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert telephone/fax numbers representative]	umbers of JV	''s Member	authorized
Email Address: [insert email address of JV's Membe	er authorized r	representative)	7
7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the documents]	he box(es) of ti	he attached or	riginal
Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents or registration documents of the legal entity named above			nd/or
☐ In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, doc autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial supervision of the Purchaser, in accordance with ITE	l law, and that th		
8. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of required under BDS ITB 45.1, the successful Bidder sh beneficial ownership for each JV member using the Be	all provide add	itional informat	tion on

# Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment Performance Declaration

[The following table shall be filled in by the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture and each subcontractor proposed by the Bidder]

Bidder's Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

Joint Venture Member's or Subcontractor's Name: [insert full name]

RFB No. and title: [insert RFB number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

SEA and/or SH Declaration							
in accordance with Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements							
We:							
☐ (a) have not been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations							
$\square$ (b) are subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations							
☐ (c) had been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and were removed from the disqualification list. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made in our favor.							
[If (c) above is applicable, attach evidence of an arbitral award reversing the findings on the issues underlying the disqualification.]							

# **Price Schedule Forms**

[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the **Price Schedules** shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]

# Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to be Imported Not Applicable

					C Bids, goods to b	• ,	Date:  RFB No:  Alternative No:  Page N° of		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
Line Item N°	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price CIP[insert place of destination] in accordance with ITB 14.8(b)(i)	CIP Price per line item (Col. 5x6)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country to convey the Goods to their final destination specified in BDS	Total Price per Line item (Col. 7+8)	
[insert number of the item]	[insert name of good]	[insert country of origin of the Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]	[insert number of units to be supplied and name of the physical unit]	[insert unit price CIP per unit]	[insert total CIP price per line item]	[insert the corresponding price per line item]	[insert total price of the line item]	
		•	•	•	·	•	Total Price		

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [Insert Date]

# Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported\* Not Applicable

(Group C Bids, Goods already imported)  Currencies in accordance with ITB 15  Date:  RFB No:  Alternative No:  Page N° of											
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
Line Item N°	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price including Custom Duties and Import Taxes paid, in accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(i)	Custom Duties and Import Taxes paid per unit in accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(ii), [to be supported by documents]	Unit Price net of custom duties and import taxes, in accordance with ITB 14.8 (c) (iii) (Col. 6 minus Col.7)	Price per line item net of Custom Duties and Import Taxes paid, in accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(i) (Col. 5×8)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country to convey the goods to their final destination, as specified in BDS in accordance with ITB 14.8 (c)(v)	Sales and other taxes paid or payable per item if Contract is awarded (in accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(iv)	Total Price per line item (Col. 9+10)
[insert number of theitem]	[insert name of Goods]	[insert country of origin of the Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]	[insert number of units to be supplied and name of the physical unit]	[insert unit price per unit]	[insert custom duties and taxes paid per unit]	[insert unit price net of custom duties and import taxes]	[ insert price per line item net of custom duties and import taxes]	[insert price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country]	[insert sales and other taxes payable per item if Contract is awarded]	[insert total price per line item]
										Total Bid Price	

Name of Bidder[insert complete name of Bidder]Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid]Date [insert date]

<sup>\* [</sup>For previously imported Goods, the quoted price shall be distinguishable from the original import value of these Goods declared to customs and shall include any rebate or mark-up of the local agent or representative and all local costs except import duties and taxes, which have been and/or have to be paid by the

Purchaser. For clarity the Bidders are asked to quote the price including import duties, and additionally to provide the import duties and the price net of import duties which is the difference of those values.]

## **Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country**

Purchaser's Country			(Group A and B Bids)  Currencies in accordance with ITB15		Date:  RFB No:  Alternativ	e No:	
				accordance w	viui 11 <b>D</b> 13	Page N° _	of
1	2	3	4			5	
Line Item N°	Description of Goods	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit		( Inclusi	e per line item (For) ive all taxes	
[insert number of the item]	[insert name of Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]	[insert number of units to be supplied and name of the physical unit]	[insert total price pe	er item]		
					Total P	Price	

Name of Bidder[insert complete name of Bidder]Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid]Date [insert date]

# Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services Not Applicable

Currencies in accordance with ITB15  Date:  RFB No:  Alternative No:						
					RFB No:	
					Page N° o	of
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Service N°	Description of Services (excludes inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country to convey the goods to their final destination)	Country of Origin	Delivery Date at place of Final destination	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price	Total Price per Service (Col. 5*6 or estimate)
[insert number of the Service]	[insert name of Services]	[insert country of origin of the Services]	[insert delivery date at place of final destination per Service]	[insert number of units to be supplied and name of the physical unit]	[insert unit price per item]	[insert total price per item]
				Total Bid Price		

Name of Bidder[insert complete name of Bidder]Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid]Date [insert date]

## Form of Bid Security

(Bank Guarantee)

[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

indi	cated.]
[Gu	arantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]
Ben	eficiary:[Purchaser to insert its name and address]
RFE	No.:[Purchaser to insert reference number for the Request for Bids]
Alte	rnative No.: [Insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]
Date	e:[Insert date of issue]
BID	GUARANTEE No.:[Insert guarantee reference number]
Gua	rantor:[Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]
venta the r subn	have been informed that [insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of a joint ure shall be the name of the joint venture (whether legally constituted or prospective) on names of all members thereof] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has submitted or will not to the Beneficiary its Bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of under Request for Bids No ("the RFB").
	hermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, Bids must be borted by a Bid guarantee.
Bend (the	he request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the eficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of
(a)	has withdrawn its Bid prior to the Bid validity expiry date set forth in the Applicant's Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Applicant; or
(b)	having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity or any extension thereof provided by the Applicant has failed to: (i) sign the contract agreement, or (ii) furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the Contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such Contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the Bidding process; or (ii)twenty-eight days after the expiry date of the Bid validity.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (U	JRDG) 20	010
Revision, ICC Publication No. 758.		

[Signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

### **Manufacturer's Authorization**

[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its Bid, if so indicated in the **BDS.**]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission]

RFB No.: [insert number of RFB process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To:[insert complete name of Purchaser]

#### **WHEREAS**

We [insert complete name of Manufacturer], who are official manufacturers of [insert type of goods manufactured], having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer's factories], do hereby authorize [insert complete name of Bidder] to submit a Bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us [insert name and or brief description of the Goods], and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm.

We confirm that we do not engage or employ forced labor or persons subject to trafficking or child labor, in accordance with Clause 14 of the General Conditions of Contract.

Signed: [insert st	ignature(s) of authorized r	representative(s) o	f the Manufacturer]
Name: [insert co	mplete name(s) of authori	zed representative	e(s) of the Manufacturer]
Title: [insert title	1		
Dated on	day of		[insert date of signing]

# **Section V - Eligible Countries**

# Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non Consulting Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.8 and ITB 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this Bidding process:

Under ITB 4.8(a) and ITB 5.1: [insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"].

Under ITB 4.8(b) and ITB 5.1:[insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"]

# **Section VI - Fraud and Corruption**

(Section VI shall not be modified)

### 1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

### 2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

### 2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
  - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
  - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
  - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
  - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
  - v. "obstructive practice" is:
    - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.

- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its subconsultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines, and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner; (ii) to be a nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect<sup>3</sup> all accounts, records and other documents relating

For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

# **PART 2 – Supply Requirements**

# **Section VII - Schedule of Requirements**

### **Contents**

1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule	70
2. List of Related Services and Completion Schedule	71
3. Technical Specifications	72
4. Drawings	86
5. Inspections and Tests	87

### 1.List of Goods and Delivery Schedule

Line	<b>Description of Goods</b>	Quantity	Physical	Final Destination	Deliv	very(as per Incot	erms) Date
Item NÊ			unit	(Project Site) as specified in BDS	Earliest Delivery Date	Latest Delivery Date	Bidder's offered Delivery date [to be provided by the Bidder]
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
1	Emergency Bag	281	Bundle	O/o Additional Superintendent Of Police, Under the Supervision of AIG,TTR, New Police Complex, Khalini, Shimla-171002, HP	T+15 days	T+60 days	
2	Station Equipment for Emergency Response	25	Bundle	-Do-	-Do-	-Do-	

### 2.List of Related Services and Completion Schedule

### Not Applicable

Service	Description of Service	Quantity	Physical Unit	Place where Services shall be performed	Final Completion Date(s) of Services

### **3. Technical Specifications**

The Goods and Related Services shall comply with following Technical Specifications and Standards:

Item No	Name of Goods or Related Service	Technical Specifications and Standards				
1	Emergency	No	Items	qty	Specifications	
	Bag	1	Disposable gloves	281 Pkt	Beaded cuff ensures easy donning and prevent roll down.  Superior strength with better puncture resistant.  Full textured enhances wet and dry grip.  Thinner gauge improves tactile sensitivity.  Custom design enhances comfort and fit.  Provide an alternative solution for individuals who are allergic to natural rubber latex.  For moderate to high exposure to fluids or chemicals  Powder-free and natural rubber latex-free  Textured fingertips  Ambidextrous  Non-sterile  2 thickness options: 3mil and 4mil, satisfy all situations.  Length: 9.5"  Size: Small,Medium, Large,X-Large	
		2	Face Mask	281 Pkt	Anti Dust, Comfortable and Breathable, Three Layer Design, Seamless Crimping, Adjustable Nose Bridge, Three Dimemnsional Structures, Fine Material • Size: 17.5x9.5cm • Color: Blue/White/Green etc • Style: Elastic earloop/Tie-on • Layers: 3	
		3	Forearm Sling	281 Nos	<ul> <li>Conventional designs for support the arm</li> <li>Both layers made from non irritating material</li> <li>Polyurethane middle layer improve patient comfort         <ul> <li>Overlapping velco fasting strap allows height adjustments.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Ethafoam shoulder pad can Be placed to relieve maximum pressure point.</li> <li>Thumb loop limits wrist drop &amp; hold the hand in position.</li> <li>Size: S,M,L</li> <li>Colour: Grey Features:         <ul> <li>Excellent design</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	

			Skin-friendliness
			Simple usage
4	Elastic Bandage	281 x	Bandage Size – 8cm x4/6 m, Country of Origin
		2 =	-India, Material – Cotton, Categories – Long
		562	stretch compression, Flash coloured, Fast edges
5	Trouma Chaor	Nos	with extra porous.  The traume shears are designed to out through
	Trauma Shear	281 x 2 = 562 Nos	The trauma shears are designed to cut through heavy materials in a quick, safe and reliable fashion. The serrated blade makes the shears ideal for slicing through clothing, bandages, tape and other materials. Trauma shears, also known as Tuff Cuts (a brand name), are a type of scissors used by paramedics and other emergency medical personnel to quickly and safely cut clothing from injured people.  Bandage scissors are similar in design, though smaller, and are primarily used for sizing or removing dressing and bandages  •Enhanced serrated (toothed) lower edge cuts through 6tough materials•Clothing-lift lip and rounded tip for patient safety•Soft-grip, nonslip contoured handles for maximum control and comfort•Lightweight, only 60 grams approx•High-grade stainless steel with precision sharpness
6	Adhesive tape with various width( 1",2.5",3",4",5"	281 x 2 = 562 each	Country of Origin: India Sterility: EO Size/Dimension: 20CMX14CMX6CM Material: ADHESIVE TAPE TYPE Usage/Application: ADHESIVE WOUND
7	Universal trauma dressings	281 x4 = 1124 Nos	<ul> <li>Soft and comfortable</li> <li>Highly absorbent</li> <li>Large enough to cover multiple, closely located wounds, or fold over to increase absorbency on one major woun</li> </ul>
8	Self-adhesive roller bandages (10*5 & 5*5)	281 x4 = 1124 Nos	Material : cotton     Long stretch compression
9	Oxygen Mask - Simple (various size - adult & pediatric)	281 x 2 = 562 Nos	An oxygen mask provides a method to transfer breathing oxygen gas from a storage tank to the lungs.  • It is made of clear, non-toxic PVC, medium concentration with Adjustable nose clip  • It is Non-Autoclavable.  • It comes with oxygen tube.  • Tube Length: 2 mtrs.
10	Nasal Cannula/	281 x	•With Lip Tab: Yes
	prone (various	2 =	Steribility: Sterile
	size - adult &	562	•Material : PVC

	pediatric)	Nos	•Tube length :2-25m •Colour : Transparent
11	Pulse Oximeter	281 Nos	•Environment Friendly Product & Click The Button To Switch Two Directions While Measuring •Digital, including one hang lace. •Auto power off •Beep and alarm function •OLED Display •Battery Operated •Measuring Range: 70%-99%. •Environment Friendly Product.
12	Bag Mask Adult-Silicone	281 Pkt	Silicone artificial resuscitator comes in pouch with face mask, oxygen tube, reservoir bag. It is made of High grade Silicone Rubber, Reusable, Latex Free & Autoclavable at 134°C (Adult) supplied with Face Mask Size-4, & Reservoir Bag, Oxygen Tube Complete. Bello Capacity: 1600 ML. Reservoir Bag Capacity: 2600 ML Mask Size: 4 or 5 No. Oxygen Tube Length: 2 Mtr.
13	Bag Mask Child-Silicone	281 Pkt	Silicone artificial resuscitator comes in pouch with face mask, oxygen tube, reservoir bag. It is made of High grade Silicone Rubber, Reusable, Latex Free & Autoclavable at 134°C (Child) supplied with Face Mask Size-1, & Reservoir Bag, Oxygen Tube Complete. Bello Capacity: 500 ML. Reservoir Bag Capacity: 2600 ML Mask Size: 1 No. Oxygen Tube Length: 2 Mtr.
14	Yankauer Suction Set	281 x 10 = 2810 Nos	Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.  Yankauer Suction Tube is used to suction oropharyngeal secretions in order to prevent aspiration.  Yankauer Suction Cannula are made of Single Use  Yankauer Suction Cannula Stainless Steel are Sterile  Yankauer Suction Cannula is made of Plastic and are flexible which helps in pain free insert These Cannulas are supplied with universal connecter and tubings which connects to suction apparatus.  These Cannulas have smooth catheter eye surface with Rounded Tip for trauma free insertion  •Disposable • Non Toxic •Pyrogen free •Tube

			length: 2.5 mtrs
15	Manual Suction Device/Bulb suction	281 Nos	<ul> <li>Hand Held Suction Machine Autoclavable is made by superior quality Plastic. *Hand Held Suction Machine Autoclavable is sturdy and Non tiring unit.</li> <li>Hand Held Suction Machine Autoclavable is designed to provide immediate, quick and effective solution in emergency.</li> <li>Volume of Disposable Container is 300 ML.</li> <li>Operating Enviornmental Temperature is -20 degrees C to +50 degrees C.</li> <li>Storage Enviornmental temperature is -400 C to +600 C</li> <li>50% For Child, 100% For Adult,</li> <li>Child Catheter connection External Diameter Ø 9 mm Length 21cm.</li> <li>Adult Catheter connection External Diameter Ø 17 mm Length 21cm.</li> </ul>
16	Tongue	281	Tongue Depresssor are made of Wood. Tongue
	Depressor	Pkt	depressor is used to depress the tongue to allow for examination of the mouth and throat. Tongue depressors are flat, thin, smoothed and rounded at both ends. Tongue Depressor are packed loose and are Non Sterile.
17	Lubricating	281	•Contains glycerine and propylene glycol,
	jelly	Tube	Synthetic and vegetable gums as active
18	Pen light	281 Nos	ingredient.  Pen Torch is also known as flashlight or a torch. The source of the light is usually an incandescent light bulb. A typical flashlight consists of a light bulb mounted in a reflector, a transparent cover to protect the light source and reflector, a battery, and a switch. Pen Torch is used as a light source when in a place with no power.
19	Thermometer	281 Nos	•Easy to use •Easy to carry •LED Yellow Bulb •Battery Operated  Digital Clinical Thermometer is the easiest and quickest way to take temperature readings.  It has Clear and easy to read display.  It has audible "beep" when correct measurement time has elapsed.  Non Mercury (100% Safe)  Clinically Tested  With Fever Alert  Auto Switch Off  Highly Accurate  Measurement in F

	I	1	
			Memory Function
			Fast Measurement
			Easy to read LCD Display
			Sound Function
20	Towel 55 X 110	562	* Material : Cotton
	CM & Sheets	Each	* QUALITY: Soft, Color Fastness, AZO-Free
			Dyes, Tear-Resistant Strength, Ringspun Yarn,
			Quick Drying
21	Alcohol Wipes /	281	Alcohol Swab is made of medical non woven
	Swab	Pkt	cloth.Alcohol Swab is suitable for cleaning the
	Swao	1 Kt	wounds and disinfect injection. Packed in
			complex aluminum which is very
			effective.Alcohol Swab are processed
			hygienically.It is bacteria resistant.Alcohol
			Swab is Durable and is safely packed. Saturated
			with 70%(v/v)Isopropyl Alcohol.
	Biohazard Bags	281	Its oxo biodegradable bags. Above 120 micron
	24" X 24"	Pkt	thickness,Size:17x17-21x 24.As per
			government new norms of july 2022
23	CPR Face	281 x	Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear
	Shield	2 =	strong robust sheet.
		562	•Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.
		Nos	•Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black
			colour.
			Both side protective film lamination with
			removable film to protect with scratches.
			Odour less & materials used to bring comfort
			to user.
			•Low fogging face shield.
			Enough space to wear your spectacles and
			• •
			mask inside face shield.
			•Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.
		• • •	Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.
24	Elastic Bandage	281 x	Elastic adhesive bandage is a lightweight
	Wrap 3"X5yd	2 =	strapping bandage that can be use for ankle
		562	taping knee taping,hand taping and wrist
		Nos	taping.It is applied when moderate to maximum
			strength is necessary. It is a heavy duty elastic
			adhesive bandage with aggressive adhesion.Its
			soft cotton has very good conformability.Elastic
			adhesive bandage is strong an reliable
			stickness.It leaves no residue on boy
			parts.Color thread in the middle of the bandage
			facilitating overlapping. •Width: 10
			cm x 4/6 mtrs.
			•Stretched length
			•Flesh coloured
	Emanager	201	•Fast edges with extra porous.
25	Emergency Blanket 52" X	281	• It is characterized by its being small-sized.
	Blanket 577 X	Nos	light-weighted, heal preservation and easy-

	0.4**		
	84"		<ul> <li>carried.</li> <li>It is mainly used for mountain climbing, fighting, rescue and military in the wild.</li> <li>Materal: PET Aluminum.</li> <li>Product Size: 210 x 160cm</li> </ul>
26	Eyewash 4oz	281 x 2 = 562 Nos	*Eyewash is sterile and in this single-use bottle *Made simply of Sterile Buffered Isotonic Water 98.4%  *Keep eye wash handy everywhere you may be exposed to harmful particles, dust or chemicals *Quickly break the twist off seal and squeeze solution from bottle into your eyes until clean
27 28	Forceps Hema- Seal	281 Nos 281 x	High quality, Stainless steel, corrosion resistant, long durability and reusable.  • Latex Content: Not Latex Free
	8x10 Trauma Pad	2 = 562 Nos	• Sponge & Gauze Material : Cotton/Polyester Blend •Sterile
29	Povidone- Iodine Infection Control Wipes	281 x 2 = 562 Nos	Non-irritating and virtually non-stinging for better patient comfort. Wipe measures 1-1/4"x2-1/2" and is saturated with a 10% povidone-iodine solution equivalent to 1% available iodine.
30	Resealable Plastic Bags	281 Nos	<ul> <li>Reclosable products, Can be resealed and reused</li> <li>Best quality product</li> <li>Material: Plastic</li> <li>Closure Type: Zipper</li> <li>Item Weight 200 Grams</li> <li>Shape: Rectangular</li> <li>Colour: White</li> </ul>
31	Shears 7.25"	281 Nos	<ul> <li>Shears are designed to cut through heavy materials in a quick, safe and reliable fashion.</li> <li>The serrated blade makes the shears ideal for slicing through clothing, bandages, tape and other materials.</li> <li>The blunt end of the shears keeps patients safe from accidental cuts or slices.</li> <li>Light weight.</li> </ul>
32	Sterile Eye Pads	281 Pkt	<ul> <li>Extra White highly absorbent Cotton Wool</li> <li>Special Extra Soft Overwrap for delicate Eye Tissues</li> <li>Extra Large size protects eye completely</li> </ul>
33	Sterile Gauze Pads 3"X3"	281 Pkt	98% made of absorbent cotton fabric ,constructed from USP,BP and EP type gauze with high absorbency and high lint.With a wide range of specifications in size,ply and thread count.Sterile.
34	Sterile Gauze	281	98% made of absorbent cotton fabric

	Pads 4"X4"	constructed from USP,BP and EP type g with high absorbency and high lint. With range of specifications in size, ply and the count. Sterile.	a wide
3	Sterile Gauze Roll 6"X4"	180% made of absorbent cotton fabric constructed from USP,BP and EP type gwith high absorbency and high lint. With wide range of specifications in size, ply thread count. •Size: 10x10	n a
3	Trauma Dressings 12"X30"	• Wound Protection • Sterile & absorbent • Large area coverage • Sterile	
	Trauma Pad 5"X9" & 8"X10"	<ul> <li>Sterile, absorbent trauma dressing helps bleeding</li> <li>Highly absorbent and provides padding protection</li> <li>Pad is designed to wick away fluids and disperse them evenly</li> </ul>	g and
	Waterproof Tape 1"X10yd	•Waterproof •Easy to use •Cuttable and traceless • Warm notice	
	First Aid Guide	1. The book has been written in adhere the INC syllabus. 2. The book has designed with fully-colored illustrations throughout for real-time visualization 3. The book covers topics in-depth not of from the casualty but also from the day-life experiences at work, home, school, roadside, etc., which are found to be of guse for the nursing students as well as for common people 4. Simple language and step-wise preser of the procedures will certainly enhance readability of this book 5. Supportive illustrations have been prograding with most of the topics to help the students correlate the concepts and technof First Aid well 6. Important points have been highlighted separate boxes to help readers focus more them 7. Cautions in First Aid procedures have added at the respective places for providing good clinical practices in real-time situated. The book includes simple steps to unchasic life support, which if learned proportion save many precious lives.  Last but not least, the book also puts emitted.	only to-day great or the ntation the ovided niques ed in re on been ling tions derstand erly, 9.

			on system-wise emergencies along with disaster management and preparedness.  Special Features  1. Reviewed by 30+ senior nursing faculties PAN India  2. 100+ First aid procedures covered  3. COVID-19 First aid management included exclusively  4. 150+ Clinical Photographs and Illustrations covered  5. Step-wise presentation of First aid management  Total units: 4, Chapters: 44
40	User Manual (hindi)		The user manual (in Hindi) is a comprehensive guide that outlines the contents of the emergency bags, provides instructions for using each item, and offers guidance on how to use them in various emergency situations. The user manual for emergency bags must include the following:  • Introduction: The manual begins with an introduction that emphasises the importance of emergency bags and the purpose of the manual.  • Content list: A detailed list of all items should be included and organised categorically to make it easy for users to locate items when needed.  • Item Descriptions: Each item in the kit should be described in detail, including its purpose, how to use it, and any precautions that need to be taken. For medical supplies, instructions for proper application or usage are explained.  • Maintenance and Expiry: The manual should include guidance on regularly checking and conducting routine inspections to ensure the kit's readiness.
41	Carry Bag	281 Nos	*Made of heavy duty and waterproof military grade, 1680D ballistic nylon with reinforced stitching with heavy duty zippers.  *Minimum 25L capacity  *Customized pocket to hold items.  *Handle or shoulder strap must be provided.  *Dust proof & temperature resistant

		prope	erly and deliver to	the buyer.	
2	Station	No	Items	qty	Specifications
	Equipment for Emergency Response	1	Rigid Cervical Collar •Large • Medium • Small	25 Each	Cervical Collar with Neck Support is used for cervical spondylitis Cervical disc disease, Cervical fracture, Whiplash injury. Cervical Collar with Neck Support provides rigid support with immobilization and comfort. Cervical Collar with Neck Support is made of plastic with moulded well cushioned chin and height adjustable. Cervical Collar with Neck Support provides soft to rigid support to limit movement and prevent harmful neck motions and prevent harmful neck motions.  Size Neck Height Small (S) Below 7 CM Medium (M) 7 to 10 CM Large (L) 10 to 12 CM Extra Large (XL) 12 to 14 CM Double Extra Large (2XL) 14 to Above
		2	Long back board with straps(Spine board with strapes)	25 Nos	This spine board with safe belts is made of PE material with no discharge contaminator, and firmness to wear. This plastic spine board also can be used as a floatable device and structure is allowed X-rays because it's completely translucent. It is compatible with most head immobilization devices and strap mechanisms. It is mainly used for hospitals, sports, ambulance and outdoors to carry patients and wounded person.  Technical Parameter:  • Product Size (L x W x H):- 186 x 45.5 x 5.5cm  • Packing Size (1 pc):- 188 x 47 x 8 cm  • Load Bearing:- 159 kg  • N.W (1 pc):- 7.4 kg  • GW:- 9kg
		3	Head Immobilization Device	25 Nos	<ul> <li>It is made from 3 pcs separate part, light weight, easy to carry and use, made of NBR Rubber Foam.</li> <li>It can be used in the winter and summer, afford the impact of temperature difference.</li> <li>Function Characteristic:</li> <li>There are two holes which are used to observe the bleeding or drainage on both sides of the head, hole size is 6.5 cm in diameter.</li> <li>The material of product does not contains</li> </ul>

4	Stethoscope	25 Nos	metal.  • The patient can take product during examination of X-Ray, CT, nuclear magnetic resonance imaging (MRI).  • Pack Size :- 1 Pc  • Packing Dimension: - 42.5 x 26 x 12.5 cm  • Self weight :- 1.1 Kg  • Chest piece with dual head diaphragm  • Chest piece aluminium anodized  • Perfect Spring action movement.  • Extra soft sealing ear knobs.
			<ul><li>Comfortable head frame.</li><li>Superior rubber tubes.</li><li>With spares.</li></ul>
5	Blood Pressure Cuff	25 Nos	<ul> <li>Effective</li> <li>Comfortable</li> <li>Durable</li> <li>Skin friendly</li> <li>Size: Regular, Large, X-large</li> <li>Width: 2-3 cm, Length: 22-36 cm</li> </ul>
6	Pocket Mask	25 Nos	CPR is known as Cardiopulmonary resuscitation. It is an emergency procedure that combines chest compression often with artificial ventilation in an effort to manually preserve intact brain function until further measures are taken to restore spontaneous blood circulation and breathing in a person who is in cardiac arrest. It is indicated in those who are unresponsive with no breathing or abnormal breathing, for example, agonal respirations. Folding cushion mask for patient comfort. Oxygen inlet for the therapy of oxygen supply in an emergancy. 15mm OD connector to use with the manual resuscitator. Disposable, detachable one-way valve with 3M filter to prevent cross contamination.  •Box content: Orange box, Silicone face msk, Alcohol pad, Gloves.
7	4" Gauze Pads (Unsterile)	25 x 2 =50 Pkt	* Made of 100% woven cotton  *The Non-Sterile Gauze Pads are a highly absorbent sponge which is ideal for a number of applications
8	Wide Adhesive Tape	25 x 5 = 125 Rolls	<ul> <li>For use in wide area fixation of wound dressings</li> <li>Made from non woven material and has an acrylic adhesive. The adhesive is latex free, hypoallergenic and skin friendly</li> <li>The fixing roll permeates air and water</li> </ul>

It allows for the dressing of joints without constraining movement and is well suited to all parts of the anatomy   Hypoallergenic with extra porous.				
constraining movement and is well suited to all parts of the anatomy  Hypoallergenic with extra porous.  Comfortable to wear  125 Rolls  10  Oxygen Mask  Oxygen				vapour and is radio transparent
all parts of the anatomy Hypoallergenic with extra porous.  Comfortable to wear Leave no sticky residue, Easy to tear, Skin friendly, 100% cotton fabric Hypoallergenic with extra porous.  Specially designed for convenient oxygen therapy. Soft ,clear , large anatomical face mask for patient comfort. Adjustment elastic strap and clip for proper positioning of mask. Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked. Proximal can of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source. Size: Adult & Paediatric.  Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style. Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles. Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon Shape: Butterfly Lens Type: Zero-power Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. Low fogging face shield. Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM. Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth, Yankauer Suction Tube.				
Hypoallergenic with extra porous.  - Comfortable to wear  10   10   25 x 5 = 125 Rolls    10   10   10   10   10    Oxygen Mask   25 x 5 = 125 Nos    III   Goggles / Faceshield   25 nos    Faceshield   25 nos   25 nos				constraining movement and is well suited to
Hypoallergenic with extra porous.  - Comfortable to wear  10   10   25 x 5 = 125 Rolls    10   10   10   10   10    Oxygen Mask   25 x 5 = 125 Nos    III   Goggles / Faceshield   25 nos    Faceshield   25 nos   25 nos				all parts of the anatomy
1"Adhesive Tape   25 x 5 =   125 Rolls				•Hypoallergenic with extra porous.
10   10   10   125 Rolls   125 Rolls   125 Rolls   125 Rolls   125 Rolls   125 Rolls   100% cotton fabric   141 Phypoallergenic with extra porous.   10   10   10   10   10   10   10   1	9			
Tape  125 Rolls    Friendly, 100% cotton fabric		1" Adhesive	25 x 5 =	
Hypoallergenic with extra porous.				
**Specially designed for convenient oxygen therapy.  *Soft clear , large anatomical face mask for patient comfort.  *Adjustment elastic strap and clip for proper positioning of mask.  *Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.  *Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  *Size: Adult & Paediatric.  *Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  *Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  *Frame Material: Plastic  *Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  *Shape: Butterfly  *Lens Type: Zero- power  *Colour: Black / Transparent  *Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  *Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.  *Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  *Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  *Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  *Low fogging face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  *Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  *Yankauer Suction Tube.  Yankauer Suction Tube.  Yankauer Suction Tube.		Тарс	123 Rolls	
therapy.  *Soft , clear , large anatomical face mask for patient comfort.  *Adjustment elastic strap and clip for proper positioning of mask.  *Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.  *Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  *Size: Adult & Paediatric.  *Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  *Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  *Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  *Shape: Butterfly  *Lens Type: Zero- power  *Colour: Black / Transparent  *Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  *Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.  *Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  *Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  *Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  *Low fogging face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  *Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  *Vankauer Suction Tube.  *Yankauer Suction Tube.  *Yankauer Suction Tube.  *Yankauer Suction Tube.	10			
Oxygen Mask  Oxygen Mask  Oxygen Mask  Oxygen Mask  25 x 5 = 125 Nos  25 Nos  25 x 5 = 125 Nos  Oxygen Mask  Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  Oxygen Mask  Oxygen Mask  Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  Oxygen Mask  Oxygen Mask  Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  Oxygen Sure.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube to even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft tube to even if tube				
Oxygen Mask  25 x 5 = 125 Nos				* *
- Adjustment elastic strap and clip for proper positioning of mask.  25 x 5 = 125 Nos  25 x 5 = 125 Nos  25 Nos  25 Nos  25 Nos  10 Goggles / Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  25 nos  11 Goggles / Faceshield  25 nos  12 S nos  12 S nos  - Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  - Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  - Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  - Shape: Butterfly - Lens Type: Zero- power - Colour: Black / Transparent  - Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  - Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.  - Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  - Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  - Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  - Low fogging face shield.  - Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  - Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  - Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  - Vankauer - Suction Set - Suction Set - Suction Set - Suntance of Snield in the salso known as Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				_
Oxygen Mask    25 x 5 = 125 Nos   Proper positioning of mask.   Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.   Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.   Size: Adult & Paediatric.   Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.   Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.   Frame Material: Plastic   Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon   Shape: Butterfly   Lens Type: Zero-power   Colour: Black / Transparent				•
Oxygen Mask    Provided with 210 cm long multichannel tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.   Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.   Size: Adult & Paediatric.   Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.   Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.				
125 Nos   125			25 x 5 -	
tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen even if tube accidentally kinked.  Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  11 Goggles / Faceshield  25 nos Faceshield  25 nos Faceshield  12 Yankauer Suction Set Mills Adult Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Se		Oxygen Mask		
Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  11 Goggles / Faceshield  25 nos Faceshield Eightweight, contemporary style.  4 Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  4 Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  5 Shape: Butterfly  4 Lens Type: Zero- power  4 Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  5 Soft  Comfortable Grey Foam.  6 Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  8 Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  6 Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  10 Low fogging face shield.  11 Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  12 Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  13 Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  4 Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.			123 1108	tube to ensure continuous flow of oxygen
funnel shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  11 Goggles / Staceshield  25 nos Faceshield  12 Yankauer Suction Server with source in the August Panala of Suction Set 125 Nos  Funnel Shape connector for easy connection to oxygen source.  Size: Adult & Paediatric.  Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  Frame Material: Plastic  Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  Shape: Butterfly  Lens Type: Zero- power  Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.  Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  Low fogging face shield.  Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				even if tube accidentally kinked.
to oxygen source.  *Size: Adult & Paediatric.  *Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  *Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  *Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  *Shape: Butterfly  *Lens Type: Zero- power  *Colour: Black / Transparent  *Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  *Soft  *Comfortable Grey Foam.  *Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  *Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  *Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  *Low fogging face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  *Oeverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  *Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				•Proximal end of tube is fitted with soft
to oxygen source.  *Size: Adult & Paediatric.  *Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.  *Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles.  *Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  *Shape: Butterfly  *Lens Type: Zero- power  *Colour: Black / Transparent  *Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  *Soft  *Comfortable Grey Foam.  *Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  *Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  *Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  *Low fogging face shield.  *Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  *Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  *Oeverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  *Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				funnel shape connector for easy connection
Size: Adult & Paediatric.				_
11   Goggles / Faceshield   25 nos   • Comfortable Lightweight, contemporary style.   • Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles. • Frame Material : Plastic   • Frame Type : Full rim /Nylon   • Shape : Butterfly   • Lens Type: Zero- power   • Colour : Black / Transparent				
Faceshield  style.  Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles. Frame Material : Plastic Frame Type : Full rim /Nylon Shape : Butterfly Lens Type: Zero- power Colour : Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material : 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. Comfortable Grey Foam. Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. Low fogging face shield. Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. The special particular is a special comfort of the special comfor		Goggles /	25 nos	
• Helps provide limited impact protection from flying particles. •Frame Material: Plastic •Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon •Shape: Butterfly •Lens Type: Zero- power •Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM. • Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  125 Nos  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.		CC	20 1105	
from flying particles.  Material: Plastic  Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon  Shape: Butterfly  Lens Type: Zero- power  Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  Soft  Comfortable Grey Foam.  Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  Low fogging face shield.  Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  Ocoverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer  Suction Set  125 Nos  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.		1 deciment		
Material: Plastic  •Frame Type: Full rim /Nylon •Shape: Butterfly •Lens Type: Zero- power •Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. •Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. •Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. •Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. •Low fogging face shield. •Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. •Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM. •Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  125 Nos  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				
•Frame Type : Full rim /Nylon •Shape : Butterfly •Lens Type: Zero- power •Colour : Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material : 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				• • •
•Shape: Butterfly •Lens Type: Zero- power •Colour: Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM. • Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  125 Nos  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				
•Lens Type: Zero- power •Colour : Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material : 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  125 Nos  Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				
•Colour : Black / Transparent  Face Shield Material : 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				•
Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick clear strong robust sheet.  • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam.  • Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  • Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				
clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				•Colour : Black / Transparent
clear strong robust sheet. • Soft Comfortable Grey Foam. •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour. • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches. • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user. • Low fogging face shield. • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				Face Shield Material: 400 Micron thick
Comfortable Grey Foam.  •Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer  Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				clear strong robust sheet. • Soft
•Good Quality 1 inch elastic headband of black colour.  • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer 25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Suction Set 125 Nos Yankauer Suction Tube.				
black colour.  • Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.  • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				T
<ul> <li>Both side protective film lamination with removable film to protect with scratches.</li> <li>Odour less &amp; materials used to bring comfort to user.</li> <li>Low fogging face shield.</li> <li>Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.</li> <li>Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.</li> <li>Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.</li> <li>Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.</li> </ul>				
removable film to protect with scratches.  • Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				
Odour less & materials used to bring comfort to user.  Low fogging face shield.  Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.  Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer  Suction Set  25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				
comfort to user.  • Low fogging face shield.  • Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				•
<ul> <li>Low fogging face shield.</li> <li>Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield.</li> <li>Distance of Shield from Face: 15-20 MM.</li> <li>Coverage: Eyes, Nose, Mouth.</li> <li>Yankauer</li> <li>Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.</li> </ul>				_
• Enough space to wear your spectacles and mask inside face shield. • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer 25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Yankauer Suction Tube.				
mask inside face shield.  • Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20  MM.  • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				
Distance of Shield from Face : 15-20 MM.     Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.      Yankauer				• 1
MM. • Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer				
• Coverage : Eyes, Nose, Mouth.  12 Yankauer 25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Suction Set 125 Nos Yankauer Suction Tube.				
12 Yankauer 25 x 5 = Yankauer Suction Cannula is also known as Suction Set 125 Nos Yankauer Suction Tube.				
Suction Set 125 Nos Yankauer Suction Tube.				
Vanlanan Castian Tale is and to seed a		Suction Set	125 Nos	
Yankauer Suction 1 ube is used to suction				Yankauer Suction Tube is used to suction

13	Oropharyngeal Airways	25 Nos	oropharyngeal secretions in order to prevent aspiration. Yankauer Suction Cannula are made of Single Use Yankauer Suction Cannula Stainless Steel are Sterile Yankauer Suction Cannula is made of Plastic and are flexible which helps in pain free insert These Cannulas are supplied with universal connecter and tubings which connects to suction apparatus. These Cannulas have smooth catheter eye surface with Rounded Tip for trauma free insertion  •Disposable • Non Toxic •Pyrogen free •Tube length : 2.5 mtrs  Guedel Airways commonly known as Oropharyngeal , Oral Airway , OPA or Guedal Pattern Airway.It is a medical device which is used to maintain an unobstructed oro-pharyngeal airway. It does this by preventing the tongue from covering the epiglottis, which could prevent the person from breathing. When a person becomes unconscious, the muscles in their jaw relax and allow the tongue to obstruct the airway  Bite blocks are fitted in the Airway to avoid airway occlusion and biting of tongue.  Bite Blocks are colour coded for size identification.  Oropharyngeal Airways comes in variety of sizes from infant to adult and are used commonly in hospital emergency care.  Advantages:  Curved, hard plastic device that is designed to go over the back of the tongue.  Integral hard bite block avoids  Airway occlusion  Tongue biting  Color coded for easy size identification  E.T.O. Sterile  Pyrogen Free  Range in size from 000 to 5  Anti Dust, Comfortable and Breathable,
	Adult Face Mask (#4-5)	25 Pkt	Three Layer Design, Seamless Crimping, Adjustable Nose Bridge, Three Dimemnsional Structures, Fine Material •Size: S,M,L,X-L

15	Pediatric Face Mask (#1-3)	25 Pkt	Anti Dust, Comfortable and Breathable, Three Layer Design, Seamless Crimping, Adjustable Nose Bridge, Three Dimemnsional Structures, Fine Material • Measurements: Ages 2-6: 8" x 6" fabric, with 5" elastics. Ages 7-14: 8.5" x 6.5" fabric, with 5.5" elastics.
16	User Manual	25 Nos	The user manual (in Hindi) is a comprehensive guide that outlines the contents of the emergency station equipment, provides instructions for using each item, and offers guidance on how to use them in various emergency situations. The user manual for emergency bags must include the following:  • Introduction: The manual begins with an introduction that emphasises the importance of emergency station equipment and the purpose of the manual.  • Content list: A detailed list of all items should be included and organised categorically to make it easy for users to locate items when needed.  • Item Descriptions: Each item in the kit should be described in detail, including its purpose, how to use it, and any precautions that need to be taken. For medical supplies, instructions for proper application or usage are explained.  • Maintenance and Expiry: The manual should include guidance on regularly checking and conducting routine inspections to ensure the kit's readiness.
17	Carry Bag	25 Nos	<ul> <li>•Made of heavy duty and waterproof military grade, 1680D ballistic nylon with reinforced stitching with heavy duty zippers.</li> <li>•Minimum 15L capacity</li> <li>•Customized pocket to hold items.</li> <li>•Handle or shoulder strap must be provided.</li> <li>• Dust proof &amp; temperature resistant</li> </ul>
Gen	eral:		

All the items shown in the above table should be packed in the Carry Bag properly and deliver to the buyer.

\*The Bidder will be disqualified in case of not meeting the minimum requirements.

### 4. Drawings

This bidding document includes no drawings.

### • 5. Inspections and Tests

The following inspections and tests shall be performed:

### 1. Inspection and tests prior to shipment of Goods and at final acceptance are as follows:

- (i) The inspection of the goods shall be carried out to check whether the goods are in conformity with the technical specifications attached to the purchase order form and shall be in line with the inspection/ test procedures laid down in the technical specifications and the General Conditions of contract. Following broad test procedure will generally be followed for inspection and testing of goods.
  - The Supplier should produce the certification from Indian Certification of Medical Devices (ICMED) as deemed necessary.
  - The Purchaser may ask the supplier to demonstrate performance and also conformity to the technical specifications of any items given in the Section VII (3)
  - The supplier will dispatch the goods to the ultimate consignee after internal inspection/ testing along with the supplier's inspection report, manufacturer's warranty certificate. The purchaser will check the goods after completion of the delivery.
- (ii) The acceptance test will be conducted by the purchaser or any other person nominated by the purchaser, at its option. The acceptance will involve trouble-free operation for even consecutive days. There shall not be any additional charges for carrying out acceptance tests. No malfunction, partial or complete failure of any retrofitted accessories should occur.
- (iii) In the event of failing to pass the acceptance test, a period not exceeding two weeks will be given to rectify the defects and clear the acceptance test, failing which the purchaser reserves the rights to get the equipment replaced by the supplier at no extra cost to the purchaser.

#### 2. Manuals

- Before the goods and equipment are taken over by the Purchaser, the Supplier shall supply operation and maintenance manuals of the goods and equipment. These shall be in such detail as will enable the Purchaser to operate, maintain, adjust and repair all parts of the equipment as stated in the specifications.
- The manuals shall be in the ruling language (English) and in such form and numbers as stated in the contract.
- Unless and otherwise agreed, the goods and equipment shall not be

considered to be completed for the purpose of taking over until such manuals have been supplied to the Purchaser.

#### 3. Acceptance Certificate

On successful completion of acceptability test, receipt of deliverables etc, and after the purchaser is satisfied with the working condition of the goods and equipment, the acceptance certificate signed by the supplier and the representative of the purchaser will be issued. The date on which such certificate is signed shall be deemed to be the date of final delivery to the purchaser.

Part 3 - Contract 89

### **PART 3 - Contract**

### **Section VIII -General Conditions of Contract**

### **Table of Clauses**

1.	Definitions	93
2.	Contract Documents	94
3.	Fraud and Corruption	94
4.	Interpretation	94
5.	Language	95
6.	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association	96
7.	Eligibility	96
8.	Notices	96
9.	Governing Law	96
10.	Settlement of Disputes	96
11.	Inspections and Audit by the Bank	97
12.	Scope of Supply	97
13.	Delivery and Documents	98
14.	Supplier's Responsibilities	98
15.	Contract Price	99
16.	Terms of Payment	99
17.	Taxes and Duties	99
18.	Performance Security	100
19.	Copyright	100
20.	Confidential Information	100
21.	Subcontracting	101

22. Specifications and Standards	102
23. Packing and Documents	102
24. Insurance	102
25. Transportation and Incidental Services	103
26. Inspections and Tests	103
27. Liquidated Damages	104
28. Warranty	105
29. Patent Indemnity	105
30. Limitation of Liability	106
31. Change in Laws and Regulations	107
32. Force Majeure	107
33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments	108
34. Extensions of Time	109
35. Termination	109
36. Assignment	111
37. Export Restriction	111

### **Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract**

#### 1. Definitions

- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
  - (a) "Bank" means the World Bank and refers to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) or the International Development Association (IDA).
  - (b) "Contract" means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
  - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto.
  - (d) "Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions there from, as may be made pursuant to the Contract.
  - (e) "Day" means calendar day.
  - (f) "Completion" means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.
  - (g) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract.
  - (h) "Goods" means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.
  - (i) "Purchaser's Country" is the country specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).
  - (j) "Purchaser" means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the SCC.
  - (k) "Related Services" means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract.
  - (1) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
  - (m) "Subcontractor" means any person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to

whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier.

- (n) "Supplier" means the person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose Bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement.
- (o) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place named in the SCC.

### 2. Contract Documents

2.1 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole.

# 3. Fraud and Corruption

- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Appendix 1 to the GCC.
- 3.2 The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.

#### 4. Interpretation

4.1 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.

#### 4.2 Incoterms

- (a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties there under shall be as prescribed by Incoterms **specified in the SCC**.
- (b) The terms EXW, CIP, FCA, CFR and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the SCC and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.

#### 4.3 Entire Agreement

The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

#### 4.4 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.

#### 4.5 Non-waiver

- (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.
- (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.

#### 4.6 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

#### 5. Language

- 5.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the SCC. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.
- 5.2 The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier.

#### 6. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association

6.1 If the Supplier is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfillment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser.

#### 7. Eligibility

- 7.1 The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.
- 7.2 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

#### 8. Notices

- 8.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC.** The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.
- 8.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

# 9. Governing Law

- 9.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser's Country, unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**.
- 9.2 Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Supplier shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Purchaser's Country when
  - (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
- 9.2 (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's Country prohibits any import of goods from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.

#### 10. Settlement of

10.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to

#### **Disputes**

- resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
- 10.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure specified in the **SCC**.
- 10.3 Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,
  - (a) the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
  - (b) the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.

# 11. Inspections and Audit by the Bank

- 11.1 The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 11.2 Pursuant to paragraph 2.2 e. of Appendix 1 to the General Conditions the Supplier shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the site and/or the accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts, records and other documents audited by auditors appointed by the Bank. The Supplier's and its Subcontractors' and subconsultants' attention is drawn to Sub-Clause 3.1 (Fraud and Corruption) which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures).

#### 12. Scope of

12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as

#### Supply

specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

### 13. Delivery and Documents

13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.

# 14. Supplier's Responsibilities

- 14.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13.
- 14.2 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage forced labor or persons subject to trafficking, as described in GCC Sub-Clauses 14.3 and 14.4.
- 14.3 Forced labor consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labor, such as indentured labor, bonded labor or similar labor-contracting arrangements.
- 14.4 Trafficking in persons is defined as the recruitment, transportation, transfer, harbouring or receipt of persons by means of the threat or use of force or other forms of coercion, abduction, fraud, deception, abuse of power, or of a position of vulnerability, or of the giving or receiving of payments or benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control over another person, for the purposes of exploitation.
- 14.5 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child under the age of 14 unless the national law specifies a higher age (the minimum age).
- 14.6 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child between the minimum age and the age of 18 in a manner that is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development.
- 14.7 Work considered hazardous for children is work that, by its nature or the circumstances in which it is carried out, is likely to jeopardize the health, safety, or morals of children. Such work activities prohibited for children include work:
  - (a) with exposure to physical, psychological or sexual abuse;
  - (b) underground, underwater, working at heights or in confined spaces;

- (c) with dangerous machinery, equipment or tools, or involving handling or transport of heavy loads;
- (d) in unhealthy environments exposing children to hazardous substances, agents, or processes, or to temperatures, noise or vibration damaging to health; or
- (e) under difficult conditions such as work for long hours, during the night or in confinement on the premises of the employer.
- 14.8 The Supplier shall comply, and shall require its Subcontractors if any to comply, with all applicable health and safety regulations, laws, guidelines, and any other requirement stated in the Technical Specifications.
- 14.9 The Supplier shall comply with additional obligations as **specified** in the SCC.

#### 15. Contract Price

15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its Bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the SCC.

# 16. Terms of Payment

- 16.1 The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the **SCC**.
- 16.2 The Supplier's request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.
- 16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.
- 16.4 The currencies in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the Bid price is expressed.
- 16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the SCC, the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the SCC, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

#### 17. Taxes and

17.1 For goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, the

#### **Duties**

- Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed outside the Purchaser's Country.
- 17.2 For goods Manufactured within the Purchaser's Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.
- 17.3 If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Supplier in the Purchaser's Country, the Purchaser shall use its best efforts to enable the Supplier to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent.

# 18. Performance Security

- 18.1 If required as specified in the SCC, the Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the SCC.
- 18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 18.3 As specified in the SCC, the Performance Security, if required, shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the SCC, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.
- 18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the SCC.

#### 19. Copyright

19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party.

# **20.** Confidential Information

20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following

- completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.
- 20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.
- 20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
  - (a) the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the Bank or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;
  - (b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
  - (c) can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or
  - (d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.
- 20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

#### 21. Subcontracting

21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the Bid. Notification by the Supplier, for addition of any Subcontractor not named in the Contract, shall also include the Subcontractor's declaration in accordance with Appendix 2 to the GCC- Sexual exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH) Performance Declaration. Such notification, in the original Bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.

21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7.

### 22. Specifications and Standards

#### 22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings

- (a) The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VI, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods' country of origin.
- (b) The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.
- (c) Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33.

### 23. Packing and Documents

- 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract.During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage.Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods' final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
- 23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the SCC, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.

#### 24. Insurance

24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—in a freely convertible currency from an eligible country—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable

Incoterms or in the manner specified in the SCC.

# 25. Transportation and Incidental Services

- 25.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified Incoterms.
- 25.2 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, specified in SCC:
  - (a) performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods;
  - (b) furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
  - (c) furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
  - (d) performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and
  - (e) training of the Purchaser's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods.
- 25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services

### 26. Inspections and Tests

- 26.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the SCC.
- 26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods' final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the SCC. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
- 26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own

- costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
- 26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
- 26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier's performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.
- 26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.
- 26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract.

# 27. Liquidated Damages

27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of

delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those **SCC**. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35.

### 28. Warranty

- 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.
- 28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.
- 28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the **SCC**, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.
- 28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
- 28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the SCC, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
- 28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the SCC, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract.

## 29. Patent Indemnity

29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser's compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right

registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:

- (a) the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and
- (b) the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.

Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract.

- 29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
- 29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
- 29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier's request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 29.5 'The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.

## 30. Limitation of Liability

- 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,
  - (a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether

- in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser and
- (b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the Purchaser with respect to patent infringement

# 31. Change in Laws and Regulations

31.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the place of the Purchaser's Country where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15.

### 32. Force Majeure

- 32.1 The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.
- 32.2 For purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
- 32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the

Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

# 33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments

- 33.1 The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
  - (a) drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
  - (b) the method of shipment or packing;
  - (c) the place of delivery; and
  - (d) the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
- 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.
- 33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 33.4 **Value Engineering:**The Supplier may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the following;
  - (a) the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;
  - (b) a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs
     (including life cycle costs) the Purchaser may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal; and
  - (c) a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality.

The Purchaser may accept the value engineering proposal if the proposal demonstrates benefits that:

- (a) accelerates the delivery period; or
- (b) reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Purchaser; or
- (c) improves the quality, efficiency or sustainability of the Goods; or
- (d) yields any other benefits to the Purchaser,

without compromising the necessary functions of the Facilities.

If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Purchaser and results in:

- (a) a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Supplier shall be the percentage specified in the PCC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or
- (b) an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Supplier shall be the full increase in the Contract Price.
- 33.5 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

## 34. Extensions of Time

- 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.
- 34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1.

#### 35. Termination

#### 35.1 Termination for Default

(a) The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:

- (i) if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;
- (ii) if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or
- (iii) if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in paragrpah 2.2 a of the Appendix 1 to the GCC, in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (b) In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

### 35.2 Termination for Insolvency.

(a) The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser

### 35.3 Termination for Convenience.

- (a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
  - (i) to have any portion completed and delivered at the

### Contract terms and prices; and/or

(ii) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.

- 36. Assignment
- 36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party.
- 37. Export Restriction
- 37.1 Notwithstanding any obligation under the Contract to complete all export formalities, any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, which arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, and which substantially impede the Supplier from meeting its obligations under the Contract, shall release the Supplier from the obligation to provide deliveries or services, always provided, however, that the Supplier can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that it has completed all formalities in a timely manner, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. Termination of the Contract on this basis shall be for the Purchaser's convenience pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.3.

### **APPENDIX 1**

## **Fraud and Corruption**

(Text in this Appendix shall not be modified)

### 1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

### 2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

#### 2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
  - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
  - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
  - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
  - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
  - v. "obstructive practice" is:
    - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or acts intended to materially

impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.

- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its subconsultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;<sup>4</sup> (ii) to be a nominated<sup>5</sup> sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect<sup>6</sup> all accounts, records and other documents relating

For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and

to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

### **APPENDIX 2**

### Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH) Performance Declaration for Subcontractors\*

[The following table shall be filled in by each subcontractor proposed by the Supplier, that was not named in the Contract]

Subcontractor's Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year] Contract reference [insert contract reference]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

	rage [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages
S	EA and/or SH Declaration
We:	
☐ (a) have not been subject to disqualif	ication by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/SH obligations
☐ (b) are subject to disqualification by	the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.
3 1	n by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and ist. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made
[If (c) above is applicable, attach evide underlying the disqualification.]	ence of an arbitral award reversing the findings on the issues
Period of disqualification: From:	To:
Name of the Subcontractor	
Name of the person duly authorized t	to sign on behalf of the Subcontractor
Title of the person signing on behalf	of the Subcontractor
Signature of the person named above	<u> </u>
Date signed	day of
Countersignature of authorized repressignature:	± ±
Date signed	day of

## **Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract**

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

GCC 1.1(i)	The Purchaser's Country is: <b>INDIA</b>			
GCC 1.1(j)	The Purchaser is: Director (Projects), State Roads Project, HPRIDCL			
GCC 1.1(o)	The Project Site(s)/Final Destination(s) is: O/o Additional Superintendent of Police, Under the Supervision of AIG, Traffic, Tourist & Railways (TTR), New Police Complex, Khalini, Shimla- 171002, HP			
GCC 1.1 (p)	The term <b>SEA/SH</b> where used in the Contract has the following meaning:			
	• "Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)" means the following:			
	<b>Sexual Exploitation</b> is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another.			
	<b>Sexual Abuse</b> is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions.			
	• "Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature by contractor's personnel with other contractor's, subcontractors' or employer's personnel.			
GCC 4.2 (a)	The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms. If the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of the parties thereunder shall not be as prescribed by Incoterms, they shall be as prescribed by Nationally Accepted Trade Terms Documents.			
GCC 4.2 (b)	The version edition of Incoterms shall be <b>2020 Rules</b> .			
GCC 5.1	The language shall be: <b>English</b>			

GCC 8.1	For <b>notices</b> , the Purchaser's address shall be:			
GCC 6.1				
	Director (Projects),			
	State Roads Project, HPRIDCL,			
	Nirman Bhawan, Nigam Vihar,			
	Shimla-171002 Himachal Pradesh (India) Telephone number +91-117-2627602			
	Facsimile number: +91-117-2620663,			
	Email address: pdsrp-hp@nic.in			
GCC 9.1	The governing law shall be the law of Government of India.			
GCC 10.2	The rules of procedure for arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 10.2 shall be as follows:			
	(b) Contracts with Supplier national of the Purchaser's Country:			
	In the case of a dispute between the Purchaser and a Supplier who is a national of the Purchaser's Country, the dispute shall be referred to adjudication or arbitration in accordance with the laws of <b>India</b> .			
GCC 13.1	Details of Shipping and other Documents to be furnished by the Supplier are:			
	For goods manufactured within India			
	Within 24 hours of dispatch, the supplier shall notify the purchaser the complete details of dispatch and also supply following documents by registered post / speed post and copies thereof by FAX/ Email.  a) Two copies of Supplier's Invoice indicating, inter-alia description and specification of the goods, quantity, unit price, total value; b) Packing list;			
	c) Certificate of country of origin;			
	d) Insurance certificate, if required under the contract;			
	<ul><li>e) Railway receipt/Consignment note;</li><li>f) Manufacturer's guarantee certificate and in-house inspection certificate;</li></ul>			
	g) Inspection certificate issued by purchaser's inspector, if any; and h) Any other document(s) as and when required in terms of the contract.			
	Note:			
	1. The nomenclature used for the item description in the invoices(S), packing list(s) and the delivery note(s) etc. should be identical to that used in the contract. The dispatch particulars including the name of the transporter should also			

be mentioned in the Invoice(s).

2. The above documents should be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.

### For goods manufactured abroad

Within 24 hours of dispatch, the supplier shall notify the purchaser the complete details of dispatch and also supply following documents by Registered Post/courier and copies thereof by FAX/Email.

- a) Two copies of supplier's Invoice giving full details of the goods including quantity, value, etc.;
- b) Packing list;
- c) Certificate of country of origin issued by supplier;
- d) Manufacturer's guarantee and Inspection certificate;
- e) Inspection certificate issued by the Purchaser's Inspector, if any;
- f) Insurance Certificate, if required under the contract;
- g) Name of the Vessel/Carrier;
- h) Bill of Lading/Airway Bill;
- i) Any other document(s) as and when required in terms of the contract.

### Note:

- 1. The nomenclature used for the item description in the Invoice(s), packing list(s) and the delivery note(s) etc. should be identical to that used in the contract. The dispatch particulars including the name of the transporter should also be mentioned in the Invoice(s).
- 2. The above documents should be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.

### GCC 14.9 Not Applicable.

## GCC 15.1 The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed **shall not** be adjustable.

## GCC 16.1 The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be as follows:

Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's Country:

Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's Country shall be made in **INR**, as follows:

(i) Advance Payment: No advance payment shall be paid to the

	supplier for this contract.			
	(ii) <b>On Delivery:</b> Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within 7 days on receipt of the Goods and upon submission of the documents specified in GCC Clause 13.			
	(iii) <b>On Acceptance:</b> The remaining twenty (20) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within fifteen (15) days after the date of the acceptance certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Purchaser.			
GCC 16.5	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be <b>Forty Five (45)</b> days.			
	The interest rate that shall be applied is <b>8% per annum</b> .			
GCC 18.1	A Performance Security shall be required.			
GCC 18.3	The performance security shall be in the form of "Unconditional Bank Guarantees" and denominated in INR from Scheduled or Nationalized banks in India of the types as presented in Section X of the Bidding Document.			
GCC 18.4	The Performance Security of 7% of the Contract Price shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of acceptance certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Purchaser.			
	The Performance Security of balance 3% of the Contract Price shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations			
GCC 23.2	The packing, marking and documentation within and outside the packages shall be as follows:			
	a) Each item must come with a list of accessories included and fitted along with the manuals			
	b) All documentation related to registration, insurance, taxes, waranty and certifications must be provided to the Purchaser.			
GCC 24.1	The insurance coverage shall be as specified in the <b>Incoterms 2020 Rules</b> .			
GCC 25.1	Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the <b>Incoterms 2020 Rules</b> .			

GCC 25.2	Incidental services to be provided are: None		
GCC 26.1	The inspections and tests shall be: As per Section VII (5) Schedule of Requirements.		
GCC 26.2	The Inspections and tests shall be conducted at: As per Section VII (5) Schedule of Requirements.		
GCC 27.1	The liquidated damage shall be 0.5% for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance  The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: 10% of the contract value. The liquidated damages shall be levied on the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services or Contract Value as applicable.		
GCC 28.3	The period of validity of the Warranty shall be: Not Applicable as the items are disposable medical supplies.		
GCC 28.5, GCC 28.6	The period for repair or replacement shall be: <b>Fifteen (15)</b> days of being notified by the Purchaser of the occurrence of such defects.		
GCC 33.4	Deleted.		

## **Attachment: Price Adjustment Formula**

Not Applicable

## **Section X - Contract Forms**

### **Table of Forms**

Notification of Intention to Award	
Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form	128
Letter of Acceptance	130
Contract Agreement	131

### **Notification of Intention to Award**

[This Notification of Intention to Award shall be sent to each Bidder that submitted a Bid.]

[Send this Notification to the Bidder's Authorized Representative named in the Bidder Information Form]

For the attention of Bidder's Authorized Representative

Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]

Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]

Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

[IMPORTANT: insert the date that this Notification is transmitted to Bidders. The Notification must be sent to all Bidders simultaneously. This means on the same date and as close to the same time as possible.]

**DATE OF TRANSMISSION**: This Notification is sent by: [email/fax] on [date] (local time)

### **Notification of Intention to Award**

**Purchaser:** [insert the name of the Purchaser]

**Project:**[insert name of project]

**Contract title:** [insert the name of the contract] **Country:** [insert country where RFB is issued]

**Loan No. /Credit No. / Grant No.:** [insert reference number for loan/credit/grant]

**RFB No:** [insert RFB reference number from Procurement Plan]

This Notification of Intention to Award (Notification) notifies you of our decision to award the above contract. The transmission of this Notification begins the Standstill Period. During the Standstill Period you may:

- a) request a debriefing in relation to the evaluation of your Bid, and/or
- b) submit a Procurement-related Complaint in relation to the decision to award the contract.

### 1. The successful Bidder

Name:	[insert nameof successful Bidder]	
Address:	[insert addressof the successful Bidder]	
Contract price:	[insert contract priceof the successful Bid]	

2. Other Bidders [INSTRUCTIONS: insert names of all Bidders that submitted a Bid. If the Bid's price was evaluated include the evaluated price as well as the Bid price as read out.]

Name of Bidder	Bid price	Evaluated Bid price (if applicable)
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]

### 3. Reason/s why your Bid was unsuccessful

[INSTRUCTIONS: State the reason/s why this Bidder's Bid was unsuccessful. Do NOT include: (a) a point by point comparison with another Bidder's Bid or (b) information that is marked confidential by the Bidder in its Bid.]

### 4. How to request a debriefing

## **DEADLINE:** The deadline to request a debriefing expires at midnight on [insert date] (local time).

You may request a debriefing in relation to the results of the evaluation of your Bid. If you decide to request a debriefing your written request must be made within three (3) Business Days of receipt of this Notification of Intention to Award.

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Bidder, contact details; and address the request for debriefing as follows:

**Attention**: [insert full name of person, if applicable]

Title/position: [insert title/position]
Agency: [insert name of Purchaser]
Email address: [insert email address]

**Fax number**: [insert fax number] delete if not used

If your request for a debriefing is received within the 3 Business Days deadline, we will provide the debriefing within five (5) Business Days of receipt of your request. If we are unable to provide the debriefing within this period, the Standstill Period shall be extended by five (5) Business Days after the date that the debriefing is provided. If this happens, we will notify you and confirm the date that the extended Standstill Period will end.

The debriefing may be in writing, by phone, video conference call or in person. We shall promptly advise you in writing how the debriefing will take place and confirm the date and time.

If the deadline to request a debriefing has expired, you may still request a debriefing. In

Section X – Contract Forms 126

this case, we will provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business Days from the date of publication of the Contract Award Notice.

### 5. How to make a complaint

Period: Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award shall be submitted by midnight, [insert date] (local time).

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Bidder, contact details; and address the Procurement-related Complaint as follows:

**Attention**: [insert full name of person, if applicable]

Title/position: [insert title/position]
Agency: [insert name of Purchaser]
Email address: [insert email address]

Fax number: [insert fax number] delete if not used

At this point in the procurement process, you may submit a Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award the contract. You do not need to have requested, or received, a debriefing before making this complaint. Your complaint must be submitted within the Standstill Period and received by us before the Standstill Period ends.

### Further information:

For more information see the <u>Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers (Procurement Regulations)[https://policies.worldbank.org/sites/ppf3/PPFDocuments/Forms/DispPage.as px?docid=4005]</u> (Annex III). You should read these provisions before preparing and submitting your complaint. In addition, the World Bank's Guidance "<u>How to make a Procurement-related Complaint</u>" [http://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/products-and-services/brief/procurement-new-framework#framework] provides a useful explanation of the process, as well as a sample letter of complaint.

In summary, there are four essential requirements:

- 1. You must be an 'interested party'. In this case, that means a Bidder who submitted a Bid in this bidding process, and is the recipient of a Notification of Intention to Award.
- 2. The complaint can only challenge the decision to award the contract.
- 3. You must submit the complaint within the period stated above.
- 4. You must include, in your complaint, all of the information required by the Procurement Regulations (as described in Annex III).

#### 6. Standstill Period

DEADLINE: The Standstill Period is due to end at midnight on [insert date] (local

Section X - Contract Forms 127

time)	).		
-------	----	--	--

The Standstill Period lasts ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of this Notification of Intention to Award.

The Standstill Period may be extended as stated in Section 4 above.

If you have any questions regarding this Notification please do not hesitate to contact us.

On behalf of the	Purchaser:
Signature:	
Name:	
Title/position:	
Telephone:	
Email:	

### **Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form**

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE FORM

This Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form ("Form") is to be completed by the successful Bidder<sup>1</sup>. In case of joint venture, the Bidder must submit a separate Form for each member. The beneficial ownership information to be submitted in this Form shall be current as of the date of its submission.

For the purposes of this Form, a Beneficial Owner of a Bidder is any natural person who ultimately owns or controls the Bidder by meeting one or more of the following conditions:

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- *directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights*
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder

**RFB No.:** [insert number of RFB process] **Request for Bid No.**: [insert identification]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

In response to your request in the Letter of Acceptance dated [insert date of letter of Acceptance] to furnish additional information on beneficial ownership: [select one option as applicable and delete the options that are not applicable]

(i) we hereby provide the following beneficial ownership information.

**Details of beneficial ownership** 

Identity of Beneficial Owner	Directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares  (Yes / No)	Directly or indirectly holding 25 % or more of the Voting Rights (Yes / No)	Directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of the directors or an equivalent governing body of the Bidder  (Yes / No)
[include full name (last, middle, first), nationality, country of residence]			

#### OR

(ii) We declare that there is no Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions:

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder

### OR

(iii) We declare that we are unable to identify any Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions. [If this option is selected, the Bidder shall provide explanation on why it is unable to identify any Beneficial Owner]

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder]"

Name of the Bidder:*[insert complete name of the Bidder]
Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder:**[insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]
Title of the person signing the Bid: [insert complete title of the person signing the
<u>Bid</u> ]
Signature of the person named above: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]
<b>Date signed</b> [insert date of signing] <b>day of</b> [insert month], [insert year]

<sup>\*</sup> In the case of the Bid submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder. In the event that the Bidder is a joint venture, each reference to "Bidder" in the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form (including this Introduction thereto) shall be read to refer to the joint venture member.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Bid Schedules.

Section X – Contract Forms

## **Letter of Acceptance**

[use letterhead paper of the Purchaser]

To:[name and address of the Supplier]
Subject: Notification of Award Contract No
This is to notify you that your Bid dated [insert date] for execution of the [insert name of the contract and identification number, as given in the SCC] for the Accepted Contract Amount of [insert amount in numbers and words and name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.
You are requested to furnish (i) the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose one of the Performance Security Forms and (ii) the additional information on beneficial ownership in accordance with BDS ITB 45.1 within eight (8) Business days using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, included in Section X, - Contract Forms, of the Bidding Document.
Authorized Signature:

**Attachment: Contract Agreement** 

Section X - Contract Forms 131

### **Contract Agreement**

[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

#### THIS AGREEMENT made

the [insert:number] day of[insert:month], [insert:year].

#### BETWEEN

- (1) [insert complete name of Purchaser], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of .... of the Government of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}, or corporation incorporated under the laws of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}] and having its principal place of business at [insert address of Purchaser] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser"), of the one part, and
- (2) [insert name of Supplier], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert:country of Supplier] and having its principal place of business at [insert:address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier"), of the other part:

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited Bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., [insert brief description of Goods and Services] and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services

The Purchaser and the Supplier agree as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents.
  - (a) the Letter of Acceptance
  - (b) the Letter of Bid
  - (c) the Addenda Nos.\_\_\_\_ (if any)
  - (d) Special Conditions of Contract
  - (e) General Conditions of Contract
  - (f) the Specification (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)

- (g) the completed Schedules (including Price Schedules)
- (h) any other document listed in GCC as forming part of the Contract
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as specified in this Agreement, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of [insert the name of the Contract governing law country] on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: [insert signature] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] In the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: [insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]